
NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

NOVEMBER 14, 2016 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 
 
 
 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov




 

 
 
 
 
The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver  
Troy, MI 48084 
 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council Members: 
 
In this packet, you will find the agenda for the City Council meeting. To help facilitate an informed 
discussion, the packet provides you with agenda items and additional details. The packet also 
contains recommended courses of action for your consideration and seeks to aid you in adopting 
sound policy decisions for the City of Troy. 
 
This comprehensive agenda has been put together through the collaborative efforts of 
management and staff members. We have made all attempts to obtain accurate supporting 
information. It is the result of many meetings and much deliberation, and I would like to thank 
the staff for their efforts. 
 
If you need any further information, staff is always available to provide more information and 
answer questions that may arise. You can contact me at bkischnick@troymi.gov or 
989.233.7335 with questions. 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick,  
City Manager 
 



 
  

 



 

 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA 

November 14, 2016 – 7:30 PM 
Council Chambers 

City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan 48084 

(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. 1. ROLL CALL: 1 

B. 2. 2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL INSTALLATION: 1 

a) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem ............................................................................ 1 
b) Swearing-In of Mayor Pro Tem ............................................................................. 2 
c) Adoption of 2016-2017 City Council Rules of Procedure ...................................... 2 
d) Adoption of Code of Ethics for City Council .......................................................... 2 
e) Adoption of Code of Ethics for Boards and Committees ....................................... 2 
f) Proposed Resolution to Allow Pennington Collision to Remain on the List of 

Eligible Vendors .................................................................................................... 3 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 3 

C-1 Presentation to the Mayor and City Council on the 2017 Shen Yun Performances 
at the Detroit Opera House by Julia Song and Valorie Avore (Introduced by: Cindy 
Stewart, Community Affairs Director) 3 

C-2 Service Commendation for Ted Halsey (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 3 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 3 

D-1 No Carryover Items 3 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 3 

E-1 No Public Hearings 3 



 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS 
AND BUSINESSES: 3 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 5 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 5 

H-1 No Postponed Items 5 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 5 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 
Council Appointments – Parks and Recreation Board 5 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy 
Advisory Committee, Local Development Finance Authority, Volunteer Firefighter 
Incentive Plan Board; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, 
Historic District Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee 6 

I-3 Closed Session Requested 11 

I-4 Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” 
(Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney) 12 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 12 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 12 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 13 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 13 

a) Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission-Draft – October 24, 
2016 ................................................................................................................... 13 

b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 24, 2016 .................................................. 13 
c) Special Joint City Council and Downtown Development Authority-Draft – 

October 25, 2016 ................................................................................................ 13 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 13 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 13 



 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Fitness Equipment .............................................................................................. 13 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles ............................................................. 14 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – 
Police Officer Ballistic Vests ............................................................................... 14 

J-5 Traffic Committee Recommendation and Minutes – October 2016 14 

J-6 2017 City Council Meeting Schedule 15 

J-7 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Six Permanent Easements from 
Forest Run, LLC – Forest Run Site Condominium, Sidwell #88-20-12-351-014 15 

J-8 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Permanent Easement from GFA 
Harmony Developers, LLC, and to Vacate a Permanent Easement and Granted 
Right-of-Way, West Oak III Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 and 
019 16 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 16 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 16 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time):  None Submitted 16 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 16 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 16 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 16 

N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 17 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 17 

O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 17 



 

P. REPORTS: 17 

P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 17 

a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final – September 14, 
2016 ................................................................................................................... 17 

b) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – September 20, 2016 ....................................... 17 
c) Traffic Committee-Final – September 21, 2016 .................................................. 17 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – October 5, 2016 .................................. 17 
e) Planning Commission-Final – October 11, 2016 ................................................ 17 
f) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – October 18, 2016 ................. 17 
g) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – October 18, 2016 ............................................ 17 
h) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – October 24, 2016 ............... 17 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – November 2, 2016 .............................. 17 

P-2 Department Reports: 17 

a) Building Department Activity Report – October, 2016 ........................................ 17 
b) Troy Nature Society Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 ... 17 
c) Financial Report for the Frightful 5K ................................................................... 17 
d) First Quarter Financial Report for the Three Months Ended September 30, 

2016 ................................................................................................................... 17 

P-3 Letters of Appreciation: 17 

a) To City Council from Darrin Millar Regarding Excellent Service Provided by 
Bill Huotari .......................................................................................................... 17 

b) To Chief Mayer from Larry Casey Regarding Citizens Police Academy ............. 17 
c) To Chief Mayer from Daniel Perry Regarding Officer Russ Barrows for 

Participation in “Active Threat” Training .............................................................. 17 
d) To Officer John Julian from Morse Preschool for Being the School Resource 

Officer ................................................................................................................. 17 

P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 17 

P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of DTE Electric Company Case No. 
U-18143 17 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF 
THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM 
TROY BUSINESSES): 17 

R. CLOSED SESSION: 17 

R-1 Closed Session 17 



 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 18 

2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 19 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 19 

November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 19 
December 5, 2016 Regular Meeting ...................................................................... 19 
December 19, 2016 Regular Meeting .................................................................... 19 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:   
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 

B. 1. ROLL CALL: 
a) Mayor Dane Slater 

Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Paul McCown 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington  

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of ______________ at the 
Joint Special City Council and Troy Family Daze Committee Meeting and the Regular City 
Council Meeting of November 14, 2016, due to ______________. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

B. 2. 2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL INSTALLATION:   
 
a) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
Rules of Procedure for the City Council addresses the appointment of Mayor Pro Tem as follows: 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall rotate annually in the following order:  Pennington, 
Hodorek, Abrahim, Baker, Henderson, Campbell  

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS               to serve as Mayor Pro Tem 
for the City Council of the City of Troy for a term scheduled to expire at 7:30 PM on Monday, 
November 13, 2017. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
b) Swearing-In of Mayor Pro Tem 
 
c) Adoption of 2016-2017 City Council Rules of Procedure 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Rules of Procedure of the City 
Council of the City of Troy as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
d) Adoption of Code of Ethics for City Council 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby (ADOPTS or AMENDS) the Code of Ethics of the 
City Council of the City of Troy as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
e) Adoption of Code of Ethics for Boards and Committees 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby (ADOPTS or AMENDS) the Code of Ethics for 
Boards and Committees of the City of Troy as recorded by the City Clerk in the Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

f) Proposed Resolution to Allow Pennington Collision to Remain on the List of Eligible 
Vendors 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The owner of Pennington Collision is also an elected City Council member; and,  
 
WHEREAS, Section 6.12(a) of the Troy City Charter requires that in order for there to be any 
possible business relationship between the City and a business in which a City Council member 
or his/her immediate family has a pecuniary interest, the other City Council members must 
agree unanimously to pass a resolution making the business eligible to conduct business with 
the City of Troy;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECUSES Council 
Member Pennington from voting.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DECLARES that Pennington Collision is 
eligible to conduct business with the City of Troy, as allowed by the Troy City Charter, Section 
6.12 (a).  
 
Yes:  
No:  
Recused: 
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Presentation to the Mayor and City Council on the 2017 Shen Yun Performances at 

the Detroit Opera House by Julia Song and Valorie Avore (Introduced by: Cindy 
Stewart, Community Affairs Director) 

 
C-2 Service Commendation for Ted Halsey (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Article 17 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to three 

(3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 

to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular Business, Consent 
Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted under the Open 
Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy Residents and 
Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed 
to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as permitted 
under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda from 
Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or Not On the 
Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From 
Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed to 
speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide his 
or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business owner). If the 
speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed agenda, then the 
speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City Council 
members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
The following has been approved by Troy City Council as a statement of the rules of decorum 
for City Council meetings. The Mayor will also provide a verbal notification of these rules prior to 
Public Comment: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather than 
to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is required to 
sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start of the meeting. 
There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the Agenda, Troy 
Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular Business, 
Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy Residents and 
Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on the Agenda.  All 
Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to speak during the 
Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 

- 5 -

Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor that turns yellow when there 
is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when the speaker's time is up.    
In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments about 
any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, including 
having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the deletion of 
speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also be careful to 
avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander and defamation.  

Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum befitting 
this great City. 

G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC
COMMENT:

H. POSTPONED ITEMS:

H-1 No Postponed Items

I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City

Council Appointments – Parks and Recreation Board, Traffic Committee 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None

b) City Council Appointments:

Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11- 
Moved by    
Seconded by    

RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School District Member 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

Term Expires:  7/31/2017 Kulin Oak (STUDENT) 
Term currently held by: Elizabeth Slifkin 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  7/31/2017 Muyang Wang (STUDENT) 
 Term currently held by: Kathleen Regan 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy Advisory 

Committee, Local Development Finance Authority, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive 
Plan Board; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic 
District Commission, Liquor Advisory Committee, Traffic Committee 

 
a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby FORWARDS the following nominated 
person(s) to serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council 
Meeting for action: 
 
 

Global Troy Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Mayor 
11 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 

Bagri Samir 5/10/2018 10/30/2018  
Balaraman Venkatesan 5/11/2018 10/30/2017  
Bica-Grodsky Lisa 6/23/2018 10/30/2017  
Burrus MiVida 7/15/2018 10/30/2019  
Chamberlain-Creanga Rebecca 5/23/2018 10/30/2017  
Coon Richard 4/22/2018 10/30/2019  
Fakhoury Awni 4/28/2018 10/30/2018  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

Mohideen Syeda 4/22/2018 10/30/2018  
Natcheva Daniela 6/24/2018 10/30/2019  
Samman Rouba 4/8/2018 10/30/2019  
Slater Dane   Mayor Appt. 
Young Ricky 4/22/2018 7/31/2017 STUDENT 

 

 
Nominations to the Global Troy Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires: 10/30/2019   
 
Term Expires: 7/31/2017  STUDENT 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Angamuthu Rahul 4/21/2018 STUDENT 
Aowad Ayman 8/22/2018  
Buchanan Cynthia 4/20/2018  
Chan Tai 4/18/2018  
O’Brien Christine 7/18/2018  
Razzacki Syed 9/9/2018  
Schneeweis Adina 5/6/2018  
Sekhri Suneel 6/15/2018  

 

 
 
 

Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) 
Appointed by Mayor 
5 Regular Members 

Staggered 4 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 
Last 
Name 

First 
Name 

App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 2 

Beltramini Robin 4/4/2016 6/30/2018 Resident 
Member  

Hodorek Ellen  11/13/2017  City Council exp 11/13/2017 

Hoef Paul V. 5/1/2017 6/30/2019 Resident 
Member EDC exp 4/30/2015 

Sharp John 3/28/2018 6/30/2020 Resident 
Member EDC exp 4/30/2015 

Shields David 6/14/2014 6/30/2016 Member NO Reappointment 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

Slater Dane M.  11/11/2019 Alternate DDA 
Spanos Irene    Oakland County 

Vitale Nickolas 4/27/2017 6/30/2019 Resident 
Member  

 

 
Nominations to the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA): 
 
Term Expires:  6/30/2020  Member 
 Term currently held by: David Shields 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Schick Michael 1/13/2017  

 

 
 
 

Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board 
Appointed by Mayor 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

Current Members: 
Last Name First Name Appointment Expire Notes 1 
Darling Tom  Ex-Officio Member 
Henderson Dave  Council Member 
Kischnick Brian  Ex-Officio Member 

 

 
Nominations to the Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board: 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2019  Citizen (Mayor Appt’d) 
 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 1 
Matlick Robert 5/27/2018  
Mohideen Syeda 4/22/2018  

 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 
b) City Council Nominations:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by 
Seconded by 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Charter Revision Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 
Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 
Bartnik Mark 1/31/2018 04/30/2018  
Berk Robert 3/28/2018 4/30/2019  
Howrylak Frank 2/1/2014 4/30/2017  
Kanoza Shirley 3/28/2018 4/30/2019  
Murray William 5/23/2018 4/30/2018  
Weisgerber William 5/7/2017 4/30/2015 NO Reappointment 
Wilsher Cynthia 2/27/2016 4/30/2017  

 

 
Nominations to the Charter Revision Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  4/30/2018  
 Term currently held by: William Weisgerber 
 
Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 
 

Historic District Commission 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 3 

Adams John 12/19/2016 5/15/2018  
Chambers Barbara 12/20/2015 3/1/2017  
McGee Timothy 5/7/2017 5/15/2018 P&R exp 9/30/17 
Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 3/1/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/18; TC exp 1/31/17 
Talarico Paula 1/8/2017 3/1/2018  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

Vacancy   3/1/2017 Paul McCown resigned 10/20/16 
Voigt W. Kent 11/30/2017 3/1/2019  

 

 
Nominations to the Historic District Commission: 
 
Unexpired Term Expires:  3/1/2017  
 Term currently held by: Paul McCown resigned 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Alali Yasser 6/14/2018  
Huber Laurie 6/10/2017  
Razzacki Syed 9/9/2018  
Salgat Charles 5/20/2017  

 

 
 
 

Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 
Last Name First Name App Res Expire Appointment Expire Notes 3 
Comiskey Ann 3/18/2016 1/31/2018  
Ehlert Max 11/5/2016 1/31/2018  
Godlewski W. Stan 12/14/2012 1/31/2017  
Gorcyca David 12/6/2015 1/31/2017  
Hall Patrick 11/24/2017 1/31/2016 NO Reappointment 
Kaltsounis Andrew 11/24/2017 1/31/2019  
Oberski Jeff   Ex-Officio Member 
Payne Timothy 2/8/2014 1/31/2018  

 

 
Nominations to the Liquor Advisory Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2019  
 Term currently held by: Patrick Hall 
 
Interested Applicants: 
No applications or resumes on file. 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 11 - 

Traffic Committee 
Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Current Members: 

Last Name First Name App Res 
Expire 

Appointment 
Expire Notes 1 Notes 3 

Brandstetter Tim 10/17/2016 1/31/2018   
Easterbrook David 11/24/2017 1/31/2016  NO Reappointment 
Huber R. Mitch 6/10/2017 1/31/2019   
Huotari William   Ex-Officio Member  
Kilmer Richard 12/12/2015 1/31/2017   
Mayer Gary   Ex-Officio Member  
Petrulis Al 1/8/2016 1/31/2017 ACAB exp 9/30/2018  
Regan Kathleen 3/26/2017 7/31/2016 STUDENT  
Roberts David   Ex-Officio Member  
Wilsher Cynthia 10/9/2016 1/31/2018   
Ziegenfelder Peter 12/9/2015 1/31/2017   

 

 
Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  1/31/2019  
 Term currently held by: David Easterbrook 
 
Interested Applicants: 
Last Name First Name App Resume Expire Notes 2 
Brikho Frencheska 3/23/2017 STUDENT; Planning Comm exp 7/31/16 
Hao Claire 3/10/2018 STUDENT 
Sekhri Arun 8/19/2018  
Wang Muyang 10/13/2018 STUDENT 

 

 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-3 Closed Session Requested 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 12 - 

BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – City of Troy v. Grand Sakwa. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-4 Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” (Introduced 

by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney)  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
a) Ordinance Amendment to Chapter 7, Section 9 – “Declared Emergency” 
 
RESOLVED, that Troy City Council hereby ADOPTS an ordinance amendment, replacing 
Chapter 7, Section 9 (Declared Emergency), as recommended by City Administration.  A copy 
of this ordinance shall be ATTACHED to the original minutes of this meeting. 
 
b) Blanket Authorization for City Manager to Make Necessary Emergency Purchases 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Manager or his/her designee 
to make any necessary emergency purchase(s) that are necessary because of an urgent and 
unforeseen situation that threatens life, property, or the general public health, safety and welfare, 
where immediate delivery or rendering of services is required. The facts supporting any such 
emergency purchase(s) shall be reported to City Council at the next regularly scheduled meeting 
following the delivery or rendering of service for City Council affirmation.   
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)           , which shall be CONSIDERED after 
Consent Agenda (J) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 13 - 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission-Draft – October 24, 2016 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 24, 2016 
c) Special Joint City Council and Downtown Development Authority-Draft – October 25, 2016 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fitness 

Equipment 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS three (3) contracts to the low bidders 
meeting specifications to provide fitness equipment for the Troy Community Center to Forte 
Fitness of Ida, MI for $9,190.00, All Pro Exercise of Plymouth Township, MI, for $46,740.00 and 
Direct Fitness Solutions, LLC of Mundelein, IL, for $9,180.00 as detailed below for an estimated 
total cost (less one to one trade ins) of $65,110.00 all at prices contained in the bid tabulation 
dated October 20, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting. 
 

      
Forte Fitness, Inc. All Pro Exercise 

Direct Fitness 
Solutions, LLC 

TOTAL COST FOR NEW EQUIPMENT $9,990.00 $54,340.00 $9,980.00 

    
Deduct Trade-Ins 

$800.00 $7,600.00 $800.00 

Estimated Grand Total Cost bid as specified 
less Trade-in Items: 

$9,190.00 $46,740.00 $9,180.00 

      

Estimated Grand Total Cost: 
$65,110.00 

  
 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 14 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative 
Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase fourteen (14) 
2017 Chevrolet and GMC replacement vehicles for the Department of Public Works and staff 
pool use from the low total bidders, Berger Chevrolet of Grand Rapids, MI, and Todd Wenzel 
Buick GMC of Westland, MI, as per the Oakland County Cooperative Bid, Contract ID number 
(Bid # 004849, 004556 and 004850), for an estimated total cost of $338,171.25. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Police 

Officer Ballistic Vests 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for three (3) year 
requirements to provide new Ballistic Vests for the Police Department, to the low bidder 
meeting specifications, CMP Distributors, Inc. of Portland, MI, for an estimated total cost of 
$85,556.00 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened November 3, 2016, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with the contract expiring 
June 30, 2019. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  
 
J-5 Traffic Committee Recommendation and Minutes – October 2016 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
3.  Request for Traffic Control – Welling at Calvert 
 

RESOLVED, That NO CHANGE be made at the intersection of Welling at Calvert. 
 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – Tutbury at Bretby 
 

RESOLVED, That the intersection of Tutbury at Bretby be MODIFIED from no traffic control to 
YIELD control on the Tutbury Lane approaches to the intersection. 

 
5.  Request for Traffic Control – Haldane at Niles 
 

RESOLVED, That the intersection of Haldane at Niles be MODIFIED from no traffic control to 
ALL-WAY STOP control at the intersection of Haldane and Niles. 

 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 15 - 

J-6 2017 City Council Meeting Schedule 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular Meetings in 2016 according to the 
following schedule at 7:30 PM: 
 

Monday, January 9 & 23 
Monday, February 6 & 20 
Monday, March 6 & 20 
Monday, April 3 & 24 
Monday, May 8 & 22 
Monday, June 5 & 19 
Monday, July 10 & 24 
Monday, August 7 & 21   
Monday, September 11 & 25 
Monday, October 9 & 23 
Monday, November 13 & 20 
Monday, December 4 & 18 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Special Study Sessions 
for the purpose of budget discussions in 2017 according to the following schedule at 6:00 PM: 
 

Monday, April 17 
Thursday, April 20 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL HOLD Regular Liquor Violation 
Hearing Meetings in 2017 according to the following schedule at 6:00 PM: 
 

Monday, February 20 
Monday, March 20  
 

BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council MAY SCHEDULE other Special Meetings 
as needed. 
 
J-7 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Six Permanent Easements from 

Forest Run, LLC – Forest Run Site Condominium, Sidwell #88-20-12-351-014 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS a warranty deed and six permanent 
easements for emergency access and ingress/egress, clear vision, sanitary sewers, sidewalks, 
storm sewers and water mains from Forest Run, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell 
#88-20-12-351-014. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 16 - 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is hereby DIRECTED to record the 
Warranty Deed and six permanent easements with the Oakland County Register of Deeds, 
copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
J-8 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Permanent Easement from GFA 

Harmony Developers, LLC, and to Vacate a Permanent Easement and Granted 
Right-of-Way, West Oak III Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 and 019 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ACCEPTS a warranty deed and permanent 
easement for public utilities from GFA Harmony Developers, LLC, owner of a portion of the 
properties having Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 and 019. 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby VACATES road right-of-way as described in a 
warranty deed recorded in Liber 49991, Page 73, and a permanent easement for public utilities 
recorded in Liber 49991, Page 75. 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to 
EXECUTE two quit claim deeds to GFA Harmony Developers, LLC, for interest the City of Troy 
was granted for road right-of-way in Liber 49991, Page 73, and for public utilities as recorded in 
Liber 49991, Page 75. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That City Administration is hereby DIRECTED to record the two 
quit claim deeds, warranty deed and permanent easement with the Oakland County Register of 
Deeds, copies of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):  None Submitted 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 17 - 

N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 
 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
O-1  No Council Comments Advanced 
 

P. REPORTS: 
P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final – September 14, 2016 
b) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – September 20, 2016 
c) Traffic Committee-Final – September 21, 2016 
d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – October 5, 2016  
e) Planning Commission-Final – October 11, 2016  
f) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – October 18, 2016 
g) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – October 18, 2016 
h) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – October 24, 2016 
i) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – November 2, 2016  
 
P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Building Department Activity Report – October, 2016  
b) Troy Nature Society Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2016 
c) Financial Report for the Frightful 5K 
d) First Quarter Financial Report for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2016 
 
P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To City Council from Darrin Millar Regarding Excellent Service Provided by Bill Huotari 
b) To Chief Mayer from Larry Casey Regarding Citizens Police Academy 
c) To Chief Mayer from Daniel Perry Regarding Officer Russ Barrows for Participation in 

“Active Threat” Training 
d) To Officer John Julian from Morse Preschool for Being the School Resource Officer  
 
P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of DTE Electric Company Case No. U-

18143 
 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND 
NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  
R-1 Closed Session  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 18 - 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA November 14, 2016 
 

- 19 - 

 
2016 SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

 
 
 

2016 SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
November 21, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 5, 2016 ........................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
December 19, 2016 ......................................................................................... Regular Meeting 

 



 
CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
 
Date:         November 14, 2016  
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
   
From:  M. Aileen Dickson, City Clerk 
  Cheryl A. Stewart, Deputy City Clerk 
 
Subject: 2016-2017 City Council Installation  
 
 
 
At the first Regular City Council Meeting each November, City Council appoints the Mayor Pro Tem 
based upon the order of rotation outlined in the City Council Rules of Procedure.  The City Council 
Rules of Procedure is presented for City Council with changes to reflect the resignation of Jim 
Campbell and the appointment of Council Member Paul McCown.  The order of rotation should be as 
follows: 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
 

The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall rotate annually in the following order:  Hodorek, 
Abrahim, Baker, McCown, Henderson, Pennington  

 
In addition, the Code of Ethics for City Council and Board and Committee Appointees are presented 
before City Council for approval each November.  At the Regular City Council Meeting of August 22, 
2016, City Council approved a resolution allowing Pennington Collision to remain on the list of eligible 
vendors.  This resolution will be added to the items presented for City Council’s approval each year at 
the first Regular Meeting in November with Council Member Pennington recused from voting on the 
resolution. 
 
City Council may submit additional changes to the City Council Rules of Procedure for consideration. 
 
 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
B-02



 
 
 
a) Proposed Resolution to Allow Pennington Collision to Remain on the List of Eligible 

Vendors 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2016-11-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
WHEREAS, The owner of Pennington Collision is also an elected City Council member; and, 
 
WHEREAS, Section 6.12(a) of the Troy City Charter requires that in order for there to be any possible 
business relationship between the City and a business in which a City Council member or his/her 
immediate family has a pecuniary interest, the other City Council members must agree unanimously 
to pass a resolution making the business eligible to conduct business with the City of Troy; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby RECUSES Council Member 
Pennington from voting. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council DECLARES that Pennington Collision is 
eligible to conduct business with the City of Troy, as allowed by the Troy City Charter, Section 6.12 
(a). 
 
Yes:       
No:       
Recused:       
 



 

 

 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted: November 9 14, 20165 
 

 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ......................................................... 1 
2. CODE OF ETHICS ........................................................................................... 1 
3. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................. 1 
4. SPECIAL MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 1 
5. REGULAR MEETINGS .................................................................................... 2 
6. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 2 
7. ORDER OF BUSINESS ................................................................................... 3 
8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................ 3 
9. MINUTES ......................................................................................................... 3 
10. PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 4 
11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS .......................................................... 4 
12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS ....................................................................... 4 
13. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING ....................................... 4 
14. PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 4 
15. CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 4 
16. APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................. 4 
17. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 6 
18. POSTPONE ..................................................................................................... 7 
19. RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 7 
20. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 7 
21. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS ..................... 7 
22. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................................... 8 
23. SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 8 
24. COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 8 
25. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS ............................. 8 
26. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 8 
27. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ..... 8 
28. VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................... 8 
29. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL ...................................................................... 8 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
B-02c



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted:  

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall rotate annually in the following order: Pennington, 
Hodorek, Abrahim, Baker, McCown, Henderson, Campbell Pennington 
 

2. CODE OF ETHICS 
a) The City Council Code of Ethics shall be reviewed in November of each calendar year, 

and all City Council members shall agree to abide by the City Council Code of Ethics, 
and shall evidence this agreement by affixing their signature to a written copy of the 
Code of Ethics at the earliest opportunity, and providing a copy to the City Clerk.   

b) The Board and Committee Code of Ethics shall be reviewed in November of each 
calendar year, and all Board and Committee members shall agree upon appointment 
to abide by the Board and Committee Code of Ethics, and shall evidence this 
agreement by affixing their signature to a written copy of the Code of Ethics at the 
earliest opportunity, and providing a copy to the City Clerk.   

 

3. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member 
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. 

4. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
Special Meetings shall be held in the Council Boardroom at 6:00 PM unless otherwise noted in 

the Call of the Meeting. 
 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2): 

Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, 
or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to 
each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of 
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the 
Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each 

specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling 
the meeting.  

• Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas 
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to each 
Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance of the meeting. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted:  

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call: 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 22. 

C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
D. Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting (Pursuant to City Charter 

Section 4.2): 
1) Special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call of the 

Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice), except as set forth below. 
E. Amendments/Additions to Agenda (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.3): 

In order for City Council to address items at a Special Meeting that are in addition to 
the Items expressly indicated in the Call of a Special Meeting, all members of City 
Council must consent to the requested addition(s) in writing and all Council members 
present at the Special Meeting must consent. 

F. Public Comment 
G. Adjournment 

5. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

6. AGENDA 
A. Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All items introduced by 
the City Council members that do not meet the Wednesday noon deadline will be 
referred to a later meeting, except by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all 
confidential items, will be posted on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council 
meetings. 
 

B. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested for a pending 
casepursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), the specific name(s) of each case is to be identified in 
the resolution, even though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed Session is requested for any collective bargaining 
unit discussion pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), the specific bargaining unit is to be 
identified pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted:  

7. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 
 
Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 22 

C. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
D. Carryover Items 
E. Public Hearings 
F. Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses – In 

accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Rule Number 17 - Members 
of the Public and Visitors 

G. City Council/City Administration Response/Reply to Public Comment  
H. Postponed Items 
I.  Regular Business 
J.  Consent Agenda 

1) Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2) Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion 

K.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
L. Public Comment for Items Not on the Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses– 

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Rule Number 17 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 

M. City Council/City Administration Response/Reply to Public Comment 
N.  Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items intended for City 

Council action that are brought forward by the Mayor or Council Members in accordance 
with Rule 6 (A).  

O.  Council Comments - Items for the good of the order brought forward by Mayor and 
Council.  

P.  Reports 
Q. Comments for Items On or Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside 

of Troy (Not Residents of Troy and Not From Troy Businesses) 
R.  Closed Session 
S.  Adjournment 

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed sessions 
and Council retreats. 

9. MINUTES 
A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The 

minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
Closed Session Minutes: No official City Council action will be necessary for closed 
session minutes, since the closed session minutes will reflect only the reason for the 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted:  

closed session (in compliance with Section 6 (B), the date, the starting and ending time 
and the persons in attendance.  

10. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations, which are formal public announcements made by City Council, shall be 
included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may be brought before 
Council or City Administration for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed 
on the Consent Agenda for approval and may include a presentation listed under Certificates 
of Recognition and Special Presentations. 

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
A motion to reconsider any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted 
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members elect. If 
such a motion to reconsider passes, and new information has been brought forward, then any 
member of Council may move to take action on the motion that is to be reconsidered, and any 
such motion would pass by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members elect.  

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

13. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING  
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker prior to voting. A motion to withdraw must receive 
a second and the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.  

14. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated 
meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

15. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion. 
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any 
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the 
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and having it considered 
as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be considered after 
other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public comment on 
Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item F.  

16. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted:  

 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are 
subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees: 

 
1) Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a roll 

call vote shall be used. 
2) Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting shall 

take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is to 
indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

3) When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of votes 
shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 

4) No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of the City 
of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan 
and Trust Board, and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) unless membership is 
required by Statute or the City Charter. 

5) Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking them 
for their willingness to serve the community. 

6) Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community on 
Boards and Commissions. 
 
Appointment of City of Troy Representation to SEMCOG and SOCRRA 

 
SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November. 
 
SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: 
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on 
the SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted:  

17. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: 
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and 
if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

three (3) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 

allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes total to address Postponed, Regular 
Business, Consent Agenda or Study items or any other item on the Agenda as permitted 
under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items On the Agenda from 
Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any Troy resident or Troy business representative, not a petitioner of an item, shall be 
allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic not on the Agenda as 
permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment for Items Not on the 
Agenda from Troy Residents and Businesses portion of the Agenda. 

• Any member of the public who is not a Troy resident or Troy business representative shall 
be allowed to speak for up to three (3) minutes to address any topic on or not on the 
Agenda as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Comments for Items On or 
Not On the Agenda from Members of the Public Outside of Troy (Not Residents of Troy 
and Not From Troy Businesses) portion of the Agenda. 

• All members of the public who wish to address the Council at a meeting shall be allowed 
to speak only if they have signed up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen 
minutes after the meeting’s start time. Signing up to speak requires each speaker provide 
his or her name and residency status (Troy resident, non-resident, or Troy business 
owner). If the speaker is addressing an Item (or Items) that appear on the pre-printed 
agenda, then the speaker shall also identify each such agenda item number(s) to be 
addressed. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority vote of the City 
Council members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 
Prior to Public Comment for Items On the Agenda, the Mayor will provide a verbal notification 
of the rules of decorum for City Council meetings. In addition, the written Agenda Packet will 
include the following language, as approved by City Council: 
 
The audience should be aware that all comments are to be directed to the Council rather 
than to City Administration or the audience. Anyone who wishes to address the Council is 
required to sign up to speak within thirty minutes before or within fifteen minutes of the start 
of the meeting. There are three Public Comment portions of the Agenda. For Items On the 
Agenda, Troy Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address Postponed, Regular 
Business, Consent Agenda, or Study items or any other item on the Agenda. Troy 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted:  

Residents and Business Owners can sign up to address all other topics under Items Not on 
the Agenda.  All Speakers who do not live in Troy or own a Troy business may sign up to 
speak during the Comments on Items On and Not On the Agenda from Members of the 
Public Outside of Troy. Also, there is a timer on the City Council table in front of the Mayor 
that turns yellow when there is one minute of speaker time remaining, and turns red when 
the speaker's time is up.    
 In order to make the meeting more orderly and out of respect, please do not clap during the 
meeting, and please do not use expletives or make derogatory or disparaging comments 
about any one person or group.  If you do so, then there may be immediate consequences, 
including having the microphone turned off, being asked to leave the meeting, and/or the 
deletion of speaker comments for any re-broadcast of the meeting.  Speakers should also 
be careful to avoid saying anything that would subject them to civil liability, such as slander 
and defamation.   
 Please avoid these consequences and voluntarily assist us in maintaining the decorum 
befitting this great City. 

18. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically 
appear on the appropriate agenda. 

19. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted and 
made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and the 
City Code. 

20. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid 
for the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report 
is submitted and approved by the City Council. 

21. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored 

by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year. 
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to 
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit 
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate, City pool car, City Vehicle rental rate, or gas mileage at current IRS 
guidelines, depending upon the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be 
authorized for payment by the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will 
be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 8 
 

Adopted:  

22. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
A.  Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desire an excused 

absence shall notify the Mayor, City Manager, City Attorney or City Clerk of their absence 
in writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. The reason shall 
be entered in the proceedings of the Council at the time of each absence. 

 
B.  In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is 

directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special 
meetings that may have been scheduled. 

23. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

24. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time. 

25. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an agenda item that calls for a vote shall send the 
item to the City Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion may be 
written to accompany the item. Rule 17 would govern, limiting any presentations to 15 
minutes. 

26. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted to the Troy City Clerk by noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate 
material will be prohibited. 

27. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

28. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 

29. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code 
Title 18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 



 
Troy City Council 

Code of Ethics 
 
As a member of Troy City Council, I will: 
 

• Respect the confidentiality of privileged information; 

• Recognize that an individual council member has no authority to speak or act for 

council; 

• Work with other council members to establish effective policies; 

• Delegate authority for the running of the city to the manager and staff; 

• Encourage the free expression of opinion by all council members; 

• Seek systematic communications between council, staff, and all elements of the 

community; 

• Render all decisions based on the available facts and independent judgment rather 

than succumbing to the influence of individuals or special interest groups; 

• Make every effort to attend all meetings; 

• Become informed concerning the issues to be considered at each meeting; 

• Avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance thereof; 

• Refrain from using this position for personal benefit, nor for the benefit of family 

members or business associates; 

• Use the same care and caution when using electronic media as would be exercised 

when speaking face-to-face or through written memoranda; 

• Avoid use of derogatory or denigrating language. 
 
 
Signed this ___ day of _______________, 201_. 
 

  
  
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
B-02d



500 W. Big Beaver                                        
Troy, MI  48084                  

(248) 524-3300               

 
 
 
 

 

 

 ...Today The City of Tomorrow... 

www.troymi.gov 
 

City of Troy 
Appointee Code of Ethics 

 
 
A City of Troy Appointee shall: 
 

• Respect the confidentiality of privileged information; 

• Recognize that an individual board or committee member has no authority to act or speak 

on behalf of the Troy City Council, the City of Troy or their respective committee; 

• Work with other appointees to further the board or committee goals;  

• Encourage the free expression of opinion by all board and committee members; 

• Communicate to City Council and staff as to issues of concern or requiring study or action; 

• Render all decisions based on the available facts and independent judgment; 

• Make every effort to attend all meetings; 

• Become informed concerning the issues to be considered at each meeting; 

• Avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance thereof; 

• Refrain from using this position for personal benefit, nor for the benefit of family members 

or business associates. 
 
 
Signed this _____ day of __________________, 20___. 
 
 

  
 Signature of Appointee 

Appointee’s Name:       

Board/Committee:       

Term expiring:       
 

 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
B-02e



SERVICE COMMENDATION 
TED HALSEY 

TRAFFIC COMMITTEE MEMBER 
 

WHEREAS, Ted Halsey served on the Troy Traffic Committee 30 years, from October 
14, 1985 and served until January 31, 2015; and   
 

WHEREAS, Ted Halsey served the citizens of Troy as a Police Officer from August 10, 
1957 until he retired on December 14, 1984; and 
 

WHEREAS, Ted Halsey became a dedicated Troy Volunteer Firefighter at Station 1 on 
May 7, 1963 until retiring on December 17, 1984; and 
 

WHEREAS, The Mayor and City Council of the City of Troy wish to express on behalf of 
the City, their appreciation to Ted Halsey in recognition of outstanding service to the 
community, and 
 

WHEREAS, The quality of life that the City of Troy offers is a result of hard work, 
planning, sacrifice, and leadership.  Thanks to Ted Halsey, one of Troy’s dedicated 
volunteers, our quality City services will continue to thrive and are key to making Troy 
the greatest place to live in the State of Michigan;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council takes this 
opportunity to express its sincere appreciation and recognition to Ted Halsey for his 
distinguished service and his many contributions to the betterment of the City through 
his work on the Troy Planning Commission, as well as the Troy Police Department and 
the Troy Fire Department; and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That by donating his time and talents, Ted Halsey has 
furthered the ideals that contribute to enriching our community.  Troy is very fortunate to 
have citizens like Ted who give so much time and energy to make our community a 
great place to live, work, play and raise a family. 
 
Presented this 14th Day of November 2016. 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
C-02



1 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Date: November 9, 2016 

To: Honorable Mayor and City Council 

From: Brian Kischnick, City Manager  
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney  
Thomas Darling, Director of Financial Services 
Lisa Burnham, Accounting Manager 
Kurt Bovensiep, Director of Public Works 
MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
Enna Bachelor, Buyer 

Subject: Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” 

Issue 

The purchasing review team for “Plan of Process & Education” (PPE) reviewed City Ordinance 
Chapter 7 Section 9. During this review, we noted that the Ordinance could be further strengthened 
by direct tie-in to the City’s Emergency Operations Plan and clarification to address emergencies that 
threaten life, property, or the general public health, safety and welfare. 

Interpretation 

Paragraph three of the Troy City Charter, section 12.1 requires that all City sales or purchases over 
ten thousand dollars shall be (a) approved by Council and (b) subject to the competitive bid process. 
The competitive bid requirement can be waived only if Council has determined an emergency exists 
or Council has determined that the public interest will be best served without obtaining sealed bids.  

The fifth paragraph of Troy Charter Provision 12.1 addresses emergency purchases, and provides 
the City Manager with the ability to purchase items over $10,000 without obtaining competitive bids or 
prior City Council approval when: “a natural disaster, civil disturbance or similar calamity is officially 
declared.”  This proposed ordinance amendment would clarify that City Council has “officially 
declared” an emergency when the City’s officially approved Emergency Operations Plan is activated, 
and this would allow for the City Manager or his/her designee to make necessary emergency 
purchases, which would then be affirmed by City Council at the next regular City Council meeting.   

There are also situations where the City’s Emergency Operations Plan is not activated, but quick 
action is required.  For example, if there is an engine failure in one of the City’s fire trucks, immediate 
repair or replacement is desired so that the truck is readily available.  The proposed ordinance 
revision allows for City Council to pass a blanket resolution authorizing the City Manager to make 
emergency purchases over $10,000 without competitive bids and without prior approval of City 
Council if immediate action is required due to “an urgent and unforeseen situation that threatens life, 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
I-04



2 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

property, or the general public health, safety and welfare.”  In any such case, the details of the 
required emergency purchase must be presented to City Council for affirmation at the next regularly 
scheduled City Council meeting.  A proposed blanket resolution authorizing this type of emergency 
purchase is proposed for your consideration.  As set forth in the proposed ordinance amendment, this 
blanket resolution can be modified or rescinded at any time, but it must be revisited any time there is 
a change in the City Council composition.      

Recommendation 

City Administration recommends the amendment of City Ordinance Chapter 7, paragraph 9, as set 
forth in the attached document.  City Administration also recommends the passage of a blanket 
resolution, giving the City Manager authority to make necessary emergency purchases that are 
urgent and unforeseen.   



CITY OF TROY
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND

CHAPTER 7 - CITY OF TROY ORDINANCE 

The City of Troy ordains:

Section 1. Short Title

This Ordinance shall be known and may be cited as an amendment to Chapter 7-
City of Troy Ordinance.

Section 2. Amendment

Section 9 shall be amended as follows:

9. Declared Emergency. In the event of an officially declared emergency, the City
Manager is permitted to make purchases without sealed bids, prior to Council
approval and in excess of the limitations provided by the Charter. All purchases
in excess of the limitations provided by the Charter, shall be reported to the
Council at the next regularly scheduled meeting.

9. Declared Emergency. Upon the activation of the City’s officially approved
Emergency Operations Plan, the City Manager or the Designated Resource
Officer is permitted to make emergency purchases without sealed bids, prior to
Council approval and in excess of $10,000. For each purchase under the
Emergency Operations Plan, the City Manager or Designated Resource Officer
shall comply with any Federal or State emergency purchasing mandates and
make every effort to secure commercially reasonable prices and retain receipts
and any other required documentation to facilitate requests for reimbursement
from State or Federal sources.  In those instances, and for those purchases
exceeding the limitations provided in the Charter, the City Manager or his/her
designee shall present the facts and circumstances concerning the purchase,
and request that City Council affirm the purchase at the next regularly scheduled
meeting following the delivery of the emergency purchase or initial rendering of
emergency service.

For all other sales or purchases exceeding $10,000, advance City Council
approval is required. However, City Council has the option of passing a blanket
type resolution granting the required advance approval for emergency purchases
that do not require the activation of the Emergency Operations Plan, but are
necessary because of an urgent and unforeseen situation that threatens life,
property, or the general public health, safety and welfare, and immediate delivery
or rendering of services is required.  If such a blanket resolution is adopted, the
resolution shall require that in any such case, the City Manager or his/her
designee shall present the facts and circumstances concerning the emergency
purchase, and request that City Council affirm the purchase at the next regularly



scheduled meeting following the delivery of the emergency purchase or initial
rendering of emergency service.    Any such resolution should be reviewed and
revisited any time there is a new member to City Council.

Section 3. Repeal

All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed only
to the extent necessary to give this ordinance full force and effect.

Section 4. Savings

All proceedings pending, and all rights and liabilities existing, acquired or incurred,
at the time this Ordinance takes effect, are hereby saved. Such proceedings may
be consummated under and according to the ordinance in force at the time such
proceedings were commenced. This ordinance shall not be construed to alter,
affect, or abate any pending prosecution, or prevent prosecution hereafter instituted
under any ordinance specifically or impliedly repealed or amended by this
ordinance adopting this penal regulation, for offenses committed prior to the
effective date of this ordinance; and new prosecutions may be instituted and all
prosecutions pending at the effective date of this ordinance may be continued, for
offenses committed prior to the effective date of this ordinance, under and in
accordance with the provisions of any ordinance in force at the time of the
commission of such offense.

Section 5. Severability Clause

Should any word, phrase, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance be held
invalid or unconstitutional, the remaining provision of this ordinance shall remain in
full force and effect.

Section 6. Effective Date

This Ordinance shall become effective ten (10) days from the date hereof or upon
publication, whichever shall later occur.

This Ordinance is enacted by the Council of the City of Troy, Oakland County,
Michigan, at a Regular Meeting of the City Council held at City Hall, 500 W. Big
Beaver, Troy, MI, on the 24th day of October, 2016.

Dane Slater, Mayor

M. Aileen Bittner, CMC, City Clerk



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council and the Troy Planning Commission was held 
on Monday, October 24, 2016, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the 
meeting to order at 6:03 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
C-1 Presentation by Bob Gibbs, Gibbs Planning Group, and Matt Farrell, Core Partners, 

on the Current Draft of the Development of the Troy Town Center Site 
 
Mayor Slater thanked all members for attending this important meeting tonight. Mr. Kischnick 
turned the discussion over to Mr. Bob Gibbs for his presentation.  
 
Mr. Gibbs discussed a presentation that reviewed the market study and proposal for the Troy 
Town Center Site. 
 
Mr. Larry Goss discussed the economic structure of the Troy Town Center Site plan. 
 
Mr. Gibbs commented that renovation of the existing civic buildings and moving of the aquatics 
center and tennis courts have been built into the costs discussed. 
 
Ms. Crusse asked if the City still wants to have an aquatics center and have it be open to non-
Troy residents. She asked if it makes sense to also maintain the tennis courts. Mayor Slater 
said that the plan includes a hotel on the current aquatics center site and it’s possible that the 
hotel developer would want to provide financial assistance in relocating the aquatics center. 
Mayor Slater said he gets a lot of feedback about the aquatics center and that it has all been 
about how it is an asset to the City. 
 
Mr. Krent said he loves the plan and wondered about the skate park. Mr. Gibbs said the skate 
park would stay where it is currently. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Pennington asked Mr. Gibbs to review the parking resources proposed in the 
new plan and to discuss underground parking. Mr. Gibbs said that underground parking is 
about three times as much as above ground parking to build. 

City Council Members Planning Commission 
Mayor Dane Slater Chairman Don Edmunds  
Edna Abrahim Ollie Apahidean 
Ethan Baker Karen Crusse 
Dave Henderson Carlton Faison 
Ellen Hodorek Michael Hutson 
Paul McCown Tom Krent 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington Padma Kuppa 
 Philip Sanzica 
 John Tagle 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

Mr. Tagle asked Mr. Gibbs to review how the conversation went in regards to keeping the civic 
buildings and remodeling them instead of completely replacing them. Mr. Gibbs said that the 
plan right now has a place for a new civic building that could be developed at any point in the 
future. Mr. Farrell commented that the placeholder civic building would be two stories, 80,000 
square feet. 
 
Mr. Apahidean asked if the plan includes offsite improvements. Mr. Mark Miller answered that 
improvements are anticipated to Big Beaver outside of this plan, as well as the replacement of a 
sanitary sewer that would affect the Town Center Site. These projects are depending on what 
happens with the Site. Mr. Apahidean asked about an underground pedestrian crossing for I-75 
or a pedestrian bridge. Mr. Gibbs said that a bridge is preferable, but it is not in the plan right 
now. 
 
Ms. Kuppa asked for comments on the existing fields as well as the proposed theater. Mr. 
Gibbs said that the plan does not include those features right now but there is room in the 
wooded area for a baseball diamond but he would rather keep the wooded area. He said that 
there is a small market proposed in the Plan at the corner of Livernois and Town Center.  
 
Council Member Baker asked for comments on the plan in relation to whether it is revenue 
neutral or what the costs would be if there is consensus tonight to continue. Mr. Farrell said that 
from tonight, if there is consensus, the development team will promote the Plan in New York in 
December. 
 
Mr. Faison asked if the entire Plan will be presented. Mr. Farrell answered that the entire plan 
will be laid out for developers to give the biggest picture possible and to show the endorsement 
of the municipality. He said he would like to see multiple developers be involved in this Site, but 
it is too premature to tell what kind of interest will be gathered in December. Mr. Gibbs said that 
the Site will be more interesting with more than one developer involved. Mr. Farrell said that the 
plan can be changed easily if the interest is not there for certain aspects. He said there are 
some areas that are essential, basically the access points and the core of the Site, but that the 
extremities can be altered as needed. Mr. Gibbs said that the Site needs to be walkable with a 
balance of buildings and parks, but he encourages that certain pieces not be eliminated to save 
costs if they will affect walkability. 
 
Council Member Abrahim asked how much of Huber Park will be allocated to the new aquatics 
center. Mr. Gibbs said that the Plan stays completely out of the legal description of Huber Park. 
He said that they are recommending that the square and street network be developed first to 
increase the value of the land around it.  
 
Mr. Krent asked if the Troy School District has been consulted about the influx of residents. Mr. 
Gibbs said he expects that most of the residents on the Site will not have children. Council 
Member Baker commented that Dr. Machesky said there is ample room in the schools for more 
students. 
 
Council Member Hodorek said she would like to reach out regionally for other opinions 
regarding the placement of the proposed civic building. Mr. Gibbs said he likes to give the prime 
location to the civic buildings in city centers and he believes this Plan will be one of the most 
beautiful city sites in the state.  
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

Council Member Abrahim asked for clarification on demolition costs and phase 1. Mr. Goss 
commented on what would be included in the costs of phase 1. 
 
Council Member McCown asked how long the entire Plan would take to execute. Mr. Gibbs said 
that he expects the Plan to take about 10 years to develop. Mr. Farrell said that there will 
definitely be interest from developers, the question is how much they will be willing to spend.  
 
Chairman Edmunds asked for clarification as to the future of the library. Mr. Gibbs said that they 
have set aside a place to move the library, but right now it will be kept where it’s at but with 
renovation and expansion. 
 
Chairman Edmunds asked if this plan requires the vote of the taxpayers.  Mr. Kischnick 
explained the areas that are restricted for open space or recreation and confirmed that a lease 
for more than three years would require referendum.  City Attorney Bluhm indicated that the 
north part of Huber Park is deed restricted.  Mrs. Bluhm added that there is an area that is 
considered Huber Park that does not have legal description that may require a change to the 
Parks and Recreation Master Plan or a referendum. 
 
Ms. Crusse requested that the landscaping on the outer areas abutting the residential areas will 
be flexible to allow trees to remain.  
 
Council Member Henderson asked for clarification for the referendum.  Ms. Bluhm indicated any 
lease three years and over has right of referendum.  Mayor Slater explained that discussion 
included land lease of 100 years in the case of a hotel, and sale of land in the case of houses 
or condominiums. 
 
Mr. Farrell clarified that the entire team at Core Partners shares this vision for the Troy Site. 
 
Mayor Slater asked for consensus of the City Council and Planning Commission members in 
regards to the direction of the Plan. Mayor Slater wants to move forward. There was a 
unanimous consensus of the members of both boards to move forward with the Plan. Chairman 
Edmunds agreed with the consensus to move forward.  
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
Claire Hao – Commented that she would like to see bike paths as part of the Plan. 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at 7:03 PM. 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 

M. Aileen Dickson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

Council Member Baker performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag was 
given. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held on Monday, October 24, 2016, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater called the meeting to order at 7:33 PM. 
 
B. ROLL CALL: 
 

a) Mayor Dane Slater 
Edna Abrahim 
Ethan Baker 
Dave Henderson 
Ellen Hodorek  
Paul McCown 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington  

 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Proclamation for America Recycles Day Presented to Pam Brady, South Oakland 

County Resource Recovery (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs 
Director) (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 

 
C-2 Diwali Celebration Proclamation Presented to Padma Kuppa, Board Member of 

Michigan Chapter of the Hindu American Foundation and Members of the Bharatiya 
Temple (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 

 
C-3 Proclamation Honoring Cindy Stewart for Being Named One of the 2016 Esteemed 

Women of Michigan (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater) 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment File No. ZOTA 249 – Enhanced Cluster Option 
 
Mayor Slater opened the Public Hearing. Mayor Slater closed the Public Hearing after hearing 
no comments from the Public. 
 
Resolution #2016-10-174 
Moved by Baker 
Seconded by Pennington 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the amendment to Article 10 of 
Chapter 39 of the Code of the City of Troy, which includes miscellaneous provisions related to 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-02b



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

cluster development in one-family residential zoning districts, to read as written in the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment (ZOTA 249), City Council Public Hearing Draft, as 
recommended by the Planning Commission. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

 
Vince Waryas Executive Director of Alliance Mobile Health, commented in opposition 

to the approval of Item I-05 
 
Motion to Waive City Council Rule #17 – Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Resolution #2016-10-175 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Pennington 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby WAIVES City Council Rule #17 – Members of the 
Public and Visitors to allow Mr. Vince Waryas an additional two minutes in order to complete his 
comments. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Laurie Thiel Previous CEO of Alliance Mobile Health, commented in opposition to 

the approval of Item I-05 
Chris Johnson Paramedic with Alliance Mobile Health, commented in opposition to the 

approval of Item I-05 
 
G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 

COMMENT: 
 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1 No Postponed Items  
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City 

Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board, Parks and Recreation Board 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 3 - 

a) Mayoral Appointments:  None 
 
b) City Council Appointments:   
 
Resolution #2016-10-176 
Moved by Pennington 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 

Animal Control Appeal Board 
Appointed by Council 
5 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 

 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Patrick Carolan 
 Term currently held by: Patrick Carolan 

 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School District Member 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Julia (Judy) Baker 
 Term currently held by: Julia (Judy) Baker 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Jeffrey L. Stewart 
 Term currently held by: Jeffrey L. Stewart 
 
Term Expires:  9/30/2019 Steve Toth 
 Term currently held by: Steve Toth 
 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council 

Nominations –Parks & Recreation Board, Traffic Committee 
 
a) Mayoral Nominations:   
 
City Council took NO ACTION on this item. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 4 - 

 
b) City Council Nominations:  
 
Resolution #2016-10-177 
Moved by Pennington 
Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated person(s) to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 

Parks and Recreation Board 
Appointed by Council 

7 Regular Members and 1 Troy School District Member 
Regular Member: 3 Year Term  /  Troy School Board Member: 1 Year Term 

 
Nominations to the Parks and Recreation Board: 
 
Term Expires:  7/31/2017 Kulin Oak 
 Term currently held by: Elizabeth Slifkin 
 

 
Traffic Committee 

Appointed by Council 
7 Regular Members 

3 Year Term 
 
Nominations to the Traffic Committee: 
 
Term Expires:  7/31/2017 Muyang Wang (STUDENT) 
 Term currently held by: Kathleen Regan 

 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Big Beaver Trolley Proposal (Introduced by: Mayor Dane Slater) (Presented by: 

Robert Cramer, SMART) 
 
Resolution #2016-10-178 
Moved by Pennington 
Seconded by Hodorek 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City Administration to 
negotiate a proposed Agreement with SMART to provide shuttle service on Big Beaver Road, 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 5 - 

and to investigate potential funding sources for this service, which shall be brought to City 
Council for its consideration at the earliest possible opportunity.  
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Emergency Medical and 

First Responder Services (Introduced by:  Fire Chief Dave Roberts and Purchasing 
Manager MaryBeth Murz) 

 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Hodorek 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a Contract to provide Emergency 
Medical & First Responder Services for the City of Troy for three (3) years with the option to 
renew annually for three (3) years to the highest rated proposer, Beaumont Mobile Medicine of 
Troy, MI, for a total estimated annual amount of $498,006.00 predicated on the anticipated 
payable hours at prices contained in the bid tabulation opened October 13, 2016, a copy of 
which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting; contract to expire December 
31, 2019. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Resolution to Amend by Substitution - Item I-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best 
Value Award – Emergency Medical and First Responder Services  
 
Resolution #2016-10-179 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Item I-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Emergency 
Medical and First Responder Services be AMENDED BY SUBSTITUTION to read “Alliance 
Mobile Health” instead of “Beaumont Mobile Medicine”; and, to read “$490,089.60” instead of 
“$498,006.00”. 
 
Yes: Pennington, Slater, Abrahim, Baker, Henderson, Hodorek 
No: McCown 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended by Substitution - Item I-5 Standard Purchasing 
Resolution 8: Best Value Award – Emergency Medical and First Responder Services 
 
Resolution #2016-10-180 
Moved by Slater 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 6 - 

Seconded by Baker 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a Contract to provide Emergency 
Medical & First Responder Services for the City of Troy for three (3) years with the option to 
renew annually for three (3) years to Alliance Mobile Health of Troy, MI, for a total estimated 
annual amount of $490,089.60 predicated on the anticipated payable hours at prices contained 
in the bid tabulation opened October 13, 2016, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting; contract to expire December 31, 2019. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon the company’s 
submission of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including insurance 
certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
  

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2016-10-181-J-1a 
Moved by Henderson 
Seconded by Pennington 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2016-10-181-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 
a) Special Joint City Council and Troy School Board Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016 
b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 7 - 

a) America Recycles Day 2016 
b) Celebration of Diwali – The Festival of Lights – October 30, 2016 
c) Cindy Stewart – Esteemed Women of Michigan 2016 Honoree  
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Snow 

Removal Services 
 
Resolution #2016-10-181-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide seasonal 
requirements with an option to renew for one (1) additional season to Advanced Landscape & 
Builders Supply Co. of Clawson, Michigan for Proposal A, Casar Management, LLC., of St. Clair 
Shores, Michigan for Proposal B, DiPonio Contracting, Inc. of Shelby Township, Michigan for 
Front End Loader with 4-5 yard capacities and Truck with 10 foot Snowplow in Proposal E, 
Florence Cement Company of Shelby Township, Michigan for Front End Loader with 8-5 yard 
capacity, Truck with 8” Snowplow and 20,000 GVW Road Grader in Proposal E; at unit prices 
contained in the bid tabulation opened September 22, 2016; a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, and the quotes received from Florence 
Cement Company and Diponio Contracting Inc., on October 7, 2016 and October 11, 2016. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES City of Troy 
Administration to extend prices established in Proposal E to additional vendors meeting 
requirements under emergency conditions for snow and ice removal. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor’s submission of 
properly executed contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other specified 
requirements. 
 
J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Myasthenia Gravis 

Association, Inc. 
 
Resolution #2016-10-181-J-5 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the request from Myasthenia Gravis 
Association, Inc., asking that they be recognized as a nonprofit organization operating in the 
community for the purpose of obtaining a charitable gaming license as recommended by City 
Management. 
 
J-6 Former I-75 – Rochester Mobil Gas Station, 2745 Rochester Road Proposal to 

Complete Analytical Testing and Final Assessment/Closure Report 
 
Resolution #2016-10-181-J-6 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES Proposal #PRB-16-229 (attached) 
from Innovative Environmental Solutions, Inc. dated October 18, 2016 in the amount of 
$9,850.00 for various environmental testing and reporting to the MDEQ concerning the former 
I75/Rochester Mobil gas station site.  



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 8 - 

 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time):   
a) Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” 
 

L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY 
RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES: 

Sunil Sivaraman Introduced himself as a candidate for Troy School Board 
Dave Gorcyca Thanked Police Chief Gary Mayer and the Troy Police Department for 

assistance in handling many difficult issues over the past year for his 
family 

M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC 
COMMENT: 

N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted 
 

O. COUNCIL COMMENTS: 
O-1  Council Comments  
 
Council Member Baker discussed the Frightful 5k event held yesterday and thanked Eleanor 
Yun, Maggie Hughes and Stephanie Fleischer for all their hard work for the event. 
 
Council Member Baker reminded all voters that their Precinct Delegates are available to provide 
information regarding the upcoming election and that they may be going door-to-door offering 
information, but that they aren’t solicitors. 
 
Council Member Baker thanked Pam Brady for all her hard work to promote recycling. 
 
Council Member McCown thanked all who were involved in the Frightful 5k. 
 
Council Member McCown reminded everyone to drive carefully on Halloween. 
 
Council Member Henderson said that since 2011, the City has saved $1.7 million due to our 
recycling efforts. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 9 - 

Mayor Slater commented that the Frightful 5k is part of the Move Across Troy strategy. He 
congratulated the winners of the 5k race. 
 

P. REPORTS: 
P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:   
a) Planning Commission-Draft – September 27, 2016 
b) Planning Commission-Final – September 27, 2016 
c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – October 5, 2016  

Noted and Filed 
 
P-2 Department Reports:   
a) Staff Response to Safety Concern 

Noted and Filed 
 
P-3 Letters of Appreciation:   
a) To Chief Mayer from Wendy Dingwall Regarding Troy High Cross Country Team 

Morning Practice 
b) To Chief Mayer from Unknown Resident Regarding Officer Assistance 
c) To Chief Roberts from Bruce Benson Regarding Eagles vs Troy Fire Department Event 
d) To Brian Kischnick from Mayor Slater Regarding Eleanor Yoon’s Outstanding Work on 

the Global Troy Advisory Committee 
e) To Chief Roberts from Nancy Butty Regarding Participation in the Apparatus Display for 

the Fire and Life Safety Program 
f) To Steve Vandette from Mark and Mary MacKinnon Regarding the Excellent Service 

Received from Guy Kitchen  
Noted and Filed 

 
P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted 
 
P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Co. Case 

No. U-18166 – Saginaw Trail Pipeline 
Noted and Filed 

 

Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND 
NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES): 

R. CLOSED SESSION:  
R-1 No Closed Session  
 

S. ADJOURNMENT: 
 
The Meeting ADJOURNED at 9:05. 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft October 24, 2016 
 

- 10 - 

 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Dickson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 25, 2016 
 

- 1 - 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Special Joint Meeting of the Troy City Council and the Troy Downtown Development Authority 
was held on Tuesday, October 25, 2016, at City Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver Rd.  Mayor Slater 
called the meeting to order at 5:00 PM. 
 

B. ROLL CALL: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:  
C-1 Presentation by Unicorp National Developments Inc. Vision for Redevelopment of 

888 W. Big Beaver Road  (Presented by:  Chuck Whittall, President) 
 
City Manager Brian Kischnick began the discussion by explaining a brief history of the DDA and 
the vision for the 888 W. Big Beaver Road site. Mr. Whittall discussed the vision for the 888 W. 
Big Beaver Rd. as planned by Unicorp National Developments. He also discussed other 
projects that Unicorp has completed that give an idea of what the 888 W. Big Beaver Rd. 
project could have to offer. 
 
Mr. Mark Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development, discussed the Troy 
Downtown Development Authority Powers, along with the tax increment financing plans. He 
also discussed the future of the TDDA. 
 
C-2 Quality Development Initiative (QDI), a Potential Incentive to Encourage Quality 

Redevelopment of the DDA District  (Presented by:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager, 
and Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development) 

 
Mr. Kischnick explained that the proposed Quality Development Initiative discussed tonight can 
be used on a case by case basis. He said that this plan is meant to have no risk to the City with 
no extended repayment. Mr. Whittall commented on the value of this plan so that the City is not 
at risk from floating bonds for the development of the 888 project. 
 

City Council Members Troy Downtown Development Authority 
Mayor Dane Slater Timothy Blair 
Edna Abrahim Dennis Bostick 
Ethan Baker Rebecca Chamberlain-Creanga 
Dave Henderson David Hay 
Ellen Hodorek Laurence Keisling 
Paul McCown Alan Kiriluk 
Mayor Pro Tem Ed Pennington Barbara Knight 
 Kenny Koza 
 Daniel MacLeish - Absent 
 Ward Randol 
 Ernest Reschke 
 Douglas Schroeder 
 Mayor Dane Slater 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-02c



CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL JOINT MEETING MINUTES-Draft October 25, 2016 
 

- 2 - 

Mr. Schroeder asked who negotiates the dollar amounts of the 60/40. Mr. Kischnick answered 
that they used the same formula used in the LDFA for Automation Alley. Mr. Licari commented 
that the LDFA formula was negotiated at the table by Oakland County and the City of Troy. He 
said that the City needed a return on the money it spent already, which ended up being 40%. 
Mayor Slater commented that the DDA will need to make the decision on the formula. 
 
Ms. Knight asked what happens at sunset. Mr. Kischnick answered that the City gets everything 
at the end of the payment schedule in 2033. Mr. Miller said that a contract is pending that will 
extend it 15 years.  
 
Mr. Keisling asked how Unicorp ended up in a deficit. Mr. Licari said that in 1994, the base 
value of the project went higher then went quite a bit lower. Mr. Licari said that when Mr. 
Whittall bought the property, there was a tribunal case pending that was settled. He said here 
ended up being an auction for the property. He said that there is an assessment deficit, not a 
tax deficit. 
 
C-3 City Council and Downtown Development Authority Discussion of the Proposed 

QDI and 888 W. Big Beaver Redevelopment  
 
Council Member Baker asked if that since this is the first development with the QDI, shouldn’t 
the split be 80/20. Mr. Whittall commented that  
 
There was unanimous consensus of the City Council and the Troy Downtown Development 
Authority to move forward with the Quality Development Initiative. 
 
 

D. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
 
 

E. ADJOURNMENT: 

The Meeting ADJOURNED at      . 
 
 
 

Mayor Dane Slater 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Dickson, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

 
Date:  October 25, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From: Mark Miller, Director of Economic & Community Development 

MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
 Elaine Bo, Recreation Director 
  Brian Goul, Assistant Recreation Director 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications - Fitness Equipment 
 
 
 
History 

• The Community Center Fitness Room offers and maintains sixty two (62) pieces of cardio equipment.  
• The fitness equipment is continually monitored and a three to four year life cycle replacement plan is in 

place based on warranty coverage(s).   
• The replacement plan ensures up-to-date equipment for patrons of the fitness room at the Community 

Center and limited repair expenses.   
• Based on the replacement plan it is necessary to purchase and replace eighteen (18) pieces of equipment 

(less trade-ins) that no longer have warranty coverage and are all past their useful life cycle.   
• Replacements are specific to brand to replace brand specific equipment.  Patrons enjoy having a variety of 

different types of equipment. 
 
Purchasing 
On October 20, 2016, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code for eighteen (18) pieces 
of physical fitness equipment with one (1) for one (1) trade-in exchange on equipment.  For every new piece of 
equipment purchased by the City from a vendor, that vendor was required to purchase one (1) trade-in.  The bid was 
posted on the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info.  Four (4) bid responses 
were received which included alternate bid responses.  The award is recommended bid as specified in order to 
maintain standardized equipment at the Community Center.  Below is a detailed summary of potential vendors: 
 

 
Companies notified via MITN 26 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 0 
Troy Companies - Active email Notification 0 
Troy Companies - Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  15 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 
 

After reviewing the bid proposals three (3) companies were the lowest bidders meeting specifications; with a one to 
one trade-in value on individual items and are being recommended for the purchase of eighteen (18) pieces of 
physical fitness equipment (less trade-ins).  Note that ProMaxima was not considered because they did not offer a 
one to one trade-in value on equipment and did not bid equipment as specified.   
 
 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the 
procurement process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more 
transparent for vendors to do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying 
annual dues receive automatic electronic notification which allows 
instant access to Bids, RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and 
check the MITN website for opportunities to do business with the 
City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not 
renew their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be 
notified of solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-04a



 

 

2 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Financial 
The funds for these purchases are available in the Community Center General Operating Supplies Account. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding three (3) contracts to the low bidders meeting specifications; Forte 
Fitness of Ida, MI for $9,190.00, All Pro Exercise of Plymouth Township, MI for $46,740.00 and Direct Fitness 
Solutions, LLC of Mundelein, IL for $9,180.00 as detailed on the following page at an estimated total cost (less one 
to one trade ins) of $65,110.00 all at prices contained in the bid tabulation.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

3 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
 

  FORTE FITNESS, INC. ALL PRO EXERCISE 
DIRECT FITNESS           
SOLUTIONS, LLC 

   Ida,  MI Plymouth, MI Mundelein, IL 

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH AND INSTALL EIGHTEEN (18) NEW PIECES OF COMMERCIAL GRADE PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT IN 
THE TROY COMMUNITY CENTER FITNESS ROOM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS AS FOLLOWS: 

EQUIPMENT TO PURCHASE (1 for 1 trade-in exchange)         

ITEM QTY 
Description                (No 

Substitutions) 
Unit Cost 

(Each) 
Estimated 
Total Cost 

 Unit Cost 
(Each)  

Estimated 
Total Cost 

 Unit Cost 
(Each)  

Estimated 
Total Cost 

1 2 PreCor Vitality Multi-Press CO24ES $1,695.00 $3,390.00 $2,195.00 $4,390.00 $2,495.00 $4,990.00 

2 2 
PreCor Vitality Leg Extension/ Leg 
Curl CO27ES $1,695.00 $3,390.00 $2,195.00 $4,390.00 $2,495.00 $4,990.00 

3 2 FreeMotion i11.9 Incline Treadmill  $4,995.00 $9,990.00 $4,595.00 $9,190.00 $5,495.00 $10,990.00 

4 6 
Matrix #T5x-2016, heavy 
commercial Treadmill $4,195.00 $25,170.00 $4,795.00 $28,770.00 $4,895.00 $29,370.00 

5 3 

Matrix A3x heavy commercial 
Ascent Trainer  $0.00 $0.00 $4,895.00 $14,685.00 $4,995.00 $14,985.00 

6 2 

Matrix E3x heavy commercial 
Elliptical  $3,695.00 $7,390.00 $3,595.00 $7,190.00 $4,395.00 $8,790.00 

7 1 

Octane XR6000 X Ride Seated 
Total Body Elliptical  $0.00 $0.00 $3,695.00 $3,695.00 $4,550.00 $4,550.00 

TOTAL COST FOR NEW EQUIPMENT   $49,330.00   $68,615.00   $78,665.00 
8   TRADE-INS             

  QTY Description 

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 
(Each) 

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 

Total 

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 
(Each) 

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 

Total 

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 
(Each) 

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 

Total 

1 
1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength 

Shoulder Press- 2002  
$200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00 

2 
1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength incline 

Press- 2002  
$200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00 

3 1 Lifefitness Hammer Leg Curl- 2002  $200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00 

4 
1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength Leg 

Extension- 2002 $200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00 
  2 Matrix #T5x- 2013 Treadmills $400.00 $800.00         

4 6 Matrix #T5x- 2013 Treadmills $400.00 $2,400.00 $700.00 $4,200.00 $500.00 $3,000.00 

5 3 Matrix A3x Ascent Trainers- 2013 $300.00 $900.00 $600.00 $1,800.00 $500.00 $1,500.00 

6 2 Matrix E3x Elliptical- 2013 $200.00 $400.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 

7 1 Octane XR6000 Xride- 2012 $300.00 $300.00 $600.00 $600.00 $700.00 $700.00 
    DEDUCT:   $5,200.00   $8,050.00   $6,600.00 
Estimated Net Total Cost (All Items 1-5 less #6 All Trade-ins) $44,130.00   $60,565.00   $72,065.00 

        $0.00   $0.00     
Estimated low bid as specified or approved equivalent less 
Trade-in Items: $0.00   $35,125.00   #REF! 

         
*Awarded low bid as specified with a 1:1 Trade-in Value.      
ITEMS 1 & 2 less trade-ins:       $9,180.00 
ITEM 3 less trade-ins:   $9,190.00         
ITEMS 4, 5, 6, & 7 less trade-ins:     $46,740.00   

*Grand Total Purchase Amount:                       $65,110.00         
G:\Bid Award 16-17 Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 Fitness Equipment ITB-COT 16-35.doc 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-35
Opening Date -- 10/20/2016 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 2
Date Reviewed - 11/1/2016 PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

1 2 PreCor Vitality Multi-Press CO24ES $1,695.00 $3,390.00 $2,195.00 $4,390.00 $2,495.00 $4,990.00
2 2 PreCor Vitality Leg Extension/ Leg Curl 

CO27ES $1,695.00 $3,390.00 $2,195.00 $4,390.00 $2,495.00 $4,990.00
3 2 FreeMotion i11.9 Incline Treadmill $4,995.00 $9,990.00 $4,595.00 $9,190.00 $5,495.00 $10,990.00
4 6 Matrix #T5x-2016, heavy commercial 

Treadmill $4,195.00 $25,170.00 $4,795.00 $28,770.00 $4,895.00 $29,370.00
5 3 Matrix A3x heavy commerical Ascent 

Trainer $0.00 $0.00 $4,895.00 $14,685.00 $4,995.00 $14,985.00
6 2 Matrix E3x heavy commercial Elliptical 

$3,695.00 $7,390.00 $3,595.00 $7,190.00 $4,395.00 $8,790.00
7 1 Octane XR6000 X Ride Seated Total 

Body Elliptical $0.00 $0.00 $3,695.00 $3,695.00 $4,550.00 $4,550.00
$49,330.00 $68,615.00 $78,665.00

8 TRADE-INS

QTY Description

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount (Each)

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount Total

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 
(Each)

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount Total

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 
(Each)

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount Total
1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength Shoulder 

Press- 2002 
$200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00

1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength incline 
Press- 2002 

$200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00

1 Lifefitness Hammer Leg Curl- 2002 $200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00
1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength Leg 

Extension- 2002
$200.00 $200.00 $225.00 $225.00 $200.00 $200.00

8 Matrix #T5x- 2013 Treadmills $400.00 $3,200.00 $700.00 $5,600.00 $500.00 $4,000.00
3 Matrix A3x Ascent Trainers- 2013 $300.00 $900.00 $600.00 $1,800.00 $500.00 $1,500.00
2 Matrix E3x Elliptical- 2013 $200.00 $400.00 $500.00 $1,000.00 $500.00 $1,000.00
1 Octane XR6000 Xride- 2012 $300.00 $300.00 $600.00 $600.00 $700.00 $700.00

DEDUCT: $5,200.00 $9,450.00 $7,600.00
$44,130.00 $59,165.00 $71,065.00

$0 00 $33 725 00 #REF!
DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE:  Yes or No
DELIVERY by 12/15/2016:  Yes or No
AUTHORIZED DEALER:  Yes or No
SERVICE FACILITY LOCATION: 

Location:
Miles from Troy
Response Time for Service Calls

CONTACT INFORMATION: Name
Name 
Hours of Operation
24 Hr. Phone

WARRANTY:  (3) Years Minimum
All Wear Items
All Parts & Labor Coverage
Free 2nd Day Parts Shipping
Free Service call

SUBCONTRACTORS: Yes or No
REFERENCES: Yes or No
INSURANCE: 

Can meet
Cannot meet

PAYMENT TERMS:
EXCEPTIONS:
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Yes or No
FORMS (5) Yes or No

LOW BIDDER(S) MEETING SPECIFICATIONS.

ALL PRO EXERCISE

Estimated Net Total Cost (All Items 1-5 less #6 All Trade-ins)

Plymouth, MI
VENDOR NAME:

TOTAL COST FOR NEW EQUIPMENT

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH AND INSTALL EIGHTEEN (18) NEW PIECES OF COMMERCIAL GRADE PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT IN THE TROY 
COMMUNITY CENTER FITNESS ROOM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS AS FOLLOWS:

DIRECT FITNESS           
SOLUTIONS, LLC

Mundelein, IL

Estimated 
Total Cost

Unit Cost 
(Each)

 Unit Cost 
(Each) 

 Unit Cost 
(Each) 

EQUIPMENT TO PURCHASE (1 for 1 trade-in exchange)

FORTE FITNESS
Ida,  MI

ITEM QTY
Description                (No 

Substitutions)
Estimated Total 

Cost
Estimated Total 

Cost

Y
Y

24-48 HRS

Y
Y

48 HRS
35

24-48 HRS

Y
Y IF ORDERD BY 11/07/16

Y

NOVI, MI
25

YY

PLYMOUTH MI
15

SHELBY TWP MI

Y
Y

734.274.0010
7A-6P

NORM MCGLINNEN

586.382.6562
STANDARD BUS HRS

JERRY SAPUTO

Y
Y
Y
Y

Y
Y Y

Y
NET 30

NO EXCEPTIONS
NET 30

N

800.525.2739
9A-5P M-F

DAN COYER

Y

Y

YYY

Y

Y

Y
Y

YYY

XX

Y

Y

NET 30

Y
Y



CITY OF TROY Page 2 of 2
BID TABULATION
PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT

1 2 PreCor Vitality Multi-Press CO24ES $2,675.00 $5,350.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 2 PreCor Vitality Leg Extension/ Leg Curl 

CO27ES $2,775.00 $5,550.00 $0.00 $0.00
Alt. 2 FreeMotion i11.9 Incline Treadmill $10,250.00 $20,500.00 $0.00 $0.00
3 6 Matrix #T5x-2016, heavy commercial 

Treadmill
$4,399.00 $26,394.00 $0.00 $0.00

4 3 Matrix A3x heavy commerical Ascent 
Trainer 

$3,499.00 $10,497.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 2 Matrix E3x heavy commercial Elliptical $4,175.00 $8,350.00 $0.00 $0.00

5 1 Octane XR6000 X Ride Seated Total 
  

$6,429.00 $6,429.00 $0.00 $0.00
$76,641.00 $0.00 $0.00

6 TRADE-INS

QTY Description

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount (Each)

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount Total

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 
(Each)

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount Total

Estimated 
Trade-In 
Amount 
(Each)

Estimated 
Trade-In 

Amount Total
1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength Shoulder 

Press- 2002 
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength incline 
Press- 2002 

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

1 Lifefitness Hammer Leg Curl- 2002 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 Lifefitness Hammer Strength Leg 

Extension- 2002
$0.00 $0.00 $0.00

8 Matrix #T5x- 2013 Treadmills $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
3 Matrix A3x Ascent Trainers- 2013 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2 Matrix E3x Elliptical- 2013 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
1 Octane XR6000 Xride- 2012 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

DEDUCT: $1,800.00 $0.00 $0.00
$74,841.00 $0.00 $0.00

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE:  Yes or No
DELIVERY:  Yes or No
AUTHORIZED DEALER:  Yes or No
SERVICE FACILITY LOCATION: 

Location:
Miles from Troy
Response Time for Service Calls

CONTACT INFORMATION: Name
Name 
Hours of Operation
24 Hr. Phone

WARRANTY:  (3) Years Minimum
All Wear Items
All Parts & Labor Coverage
Free 2nd Day Parts Shipping
Free Service call

SUBCONTRACTORS: Yes or No
REFERENCES: Yes or No
INSURANCE: 

Can meet
Cannot meet

PAYMENT TERMS:
EXCEPTIONS:
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Yes or No
FORMS (5) Yes or No
ATTEST:
ENNA BACHELOR
BRIAN GOUL Mary Beth Murz,
SUSAN RIESTERER Purchasing Manager
G: ITB-COT 16-35 Physical Fitness Equipment

Y

Y

Y
Y

NET 30
BLANK

N
Y

Y
N

Y

713-667-9606
8AM-5PM

PROMAXIMA

19
48 HRS

NEW BALTIMORE, MD

Y
Y

Y

Estimated Total 
Cost

 Unit Cost 
(Each) 

Estimated 
Total Cost

TOTAL COST FOR NEW EQUIPMENT

Estimated Net Total Cost (All Items 1-5 less #6 All Trade-ins)

ITEM QTY
Description                (No 

Substitutions)
Unit Cost 

(Each)
Estimated Total 

Cost
 Unit Cost 

(Each) 

Houston, TX
PROPOSAL:  FURNISH AND INSTALL EIGHTEEN (18) NEW PIECES OF COMMERCIAL GRADE PHYSICAL FITNESS EQUIPMENT IN THE TROY 
COMMUNITY CENTER FITNESS ROOM IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE ATTACHED SPECIFICATIONS AS FOLLOWS:

EQUIPMENT TO PURCHASE (1 for 1 trade-in exchange)

VENDOR NAME: PROMAXIMA



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  November 1, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 

Kurt Bovensiep, Public Works Director 
Tom Darling, Director of Financial Services 
Brian D Varney, Fleet Operations Manager 

 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – 

Fleet Vehicles 
 
 
History 
• The fourteen (14) vehicles being purchased are replacement vehicles for the Department of Public Works fleet 

and staff pool vehicles. 
• The fourteen (14) obsolete vehicles will be removed from service and sold at auction with estimated proceeds 

of $49,000.00. 
• This purchase replaces existing vehicles and does not increase the size of the existing Department of Public 

Works Motor Pool fleet. 
 
Purchasing 
• Todd Wenzel Buick GMC and Berger Chevrolet are the low total bidders in the Oakland County Cooperative 

Bid.  The Oakland County Contract ID numbers (Bid # 004849, 004556 and 004850) 
• The contract pricing is valid thru 2017 model year for Chevrolet and GMC vehicles.   
• On February 10, 2014 City Council authorized departments to utilize sites such as GovDeals.com to dispose 

of City owned surplus items (Resolution# 2014-02-017-J-4a).  Therefore note that the City will utilize and 
market the fourteen (14) obsolete vehicles on GovDeals.com site for optimal trade-in value. 

 
Financial 
Funds are available in the Public Works Fleet Division Capital Account.  Project #’s are detailed below 
 
Todd Wenzel Buick GMC              Budget    Unit Cost        Estimated Total       Project# 
 
(1) GMC Pickup Truck 4WD                          $30,000.00     $27,421.00          $27,421.00              2017C0066 
(3) GMC Cargo Van                                   $78,000.00     $26,310.00          $78,930.00              2017C0068 
(4) GMC Pickup Truck 2WD                 $86,000.00    $20,914.00          $83,656.00              2017C0069 
(3) GMC Pickup Truck 4WD   $85,000.00        $27,421.00          $82,263.00              2017C0070 
 
Berger Chevrolet Budget    Unit Cost       Estimated Total       Project # 
 
(1) Chevrolet Traverse AWD $75,000.00 $26,700.25           $26,700.25     2017C0067 
(2) Chevrolet Equinox FWD                           $75,000.00        $19,600.50           $39,201.00     2017C0067 
Total                  $338,171.25 
 
Funds to cover the overage of $930.00 on Project# 2017C0068 are available for this purchase in Project# 
2017C0069. 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-04b



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Recommendation 
City management requests authorization to purchase eight (8) GMC Pickup Trucks (3) GMC Cargo Vans from the 
low total bidder, Todd Wenzel Buick GMC of Westland, MI and (1) Chevrolet Traverse and (2) Chevrolet 
Equinox’s from the total low bidder Berger Chevrolet of Grand Rapids, MI as per the Oakland County Cooperative 
Bid for an estimated total cost of $338,171.25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

                                                  

                               

                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 16-17 Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 Oakland County_GMC_DPW_Memo.doc  

https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://st.motortrend.com/uploads/sites/10/2016/08/2017-gmc-savana-work-van-2500-cargo-van-angular-front.png&imgrefurl=http://www.motortrend.com/cars/gmc/&docid=8-RimVd18wQ0DM&tbnid=xy8siZ2LiWD-TM:&w=2048&h=1360&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwjN8_i0h9HPAhVs0oMKHdvTA50QMwhHKB8wHw&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://c4d709dd302a2586107d-f8305d22c3db1fdd6f8607b49e47a10c.ssl.cf1.rackcdn.com/thumbnails/stock-images/0f586d26f332651cd53e320fef23a3a1.png&imgrefurl=http://www.gychevy.com/new-chevy-equinox-omaha-ne/&docid=Y3esr76wEW5hBM&tbnid=QMiUhLO22li8oM:&w=640&h=480&bih=783&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwiQuquTztPPAhUq7IMKHRb_CX4QMwhcKDQwNA&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://images.nadaguides.com/Models/320x240/2010-GMC-Sierra1500.png&imgrefurl=http://www.nadaguides.com/Cars/GMC/Sierra-1500&docid=ej3TANKzKwdRiM&tbnid=0h5lnGo-_p8iIM:&w=320&h=240&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwimlNzQh9HPAhUlyoMKHTIfDpk4yAEQMwgEKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.cartrucktrader.com/images.aspx/id-553035730-w-492-h-369/2017-chevrolet-traverse-730-p1.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.cartrucktrader.com/burleson-tx/2017-chevrolet-traverse-553035730.htm&docid=oaCQXUKOYPESgM&tbnid=9gKE5un-bBj2AM:&w=492&h=369&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwjb0IL80dPPAhUI6oMKHWseCRMQMwiLAShiMGI&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://o.aolcdn.com/dims-global/dims3/GLOB/legacy_thumbnail/788x525/quality/85/http://o.aolcdn.com/commerce/autodata/images/USC60GMT32AA021001.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.autoblog.com/buy/2016-GMC-Sierra%2B3500HD-Base__4x4_Double_Cab_158.1_in._WB_DRW/photos/&docid=6wJhWUSdjg5ByM&tbnid=SulO4xOeFZ4DCM:&w=788&h=525&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwjioKaukNHPAhWI34MKHYwWAfA4ZBAzCEooRDBE&iact=mrc&uact=8
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://st.motortrend.com/uploads/sites/10/2016/08/2017-gmc-savana-work-van-2500-cargo-van-angular-front.png&imgrefurl=http://www.motortrend.com/cars/gmc/&docid=8-RimVd18wQ0DM&tbnid=xy8siZ2LiWD-TM:&w=2048&h=1360&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwjN8_i0h9HPAhVs0oMKHdvTA50QMwhHKB8wHw&iact=mrc&uact=8�
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=https://c4d709dd302a2586107d-f8305d22c3db1fdd6f8607b49e47a10c.ssl.cf1.rackcdn.com/thumbnails/stock-images/0f586d26f332651cd53e320fef23a3a1.png&imgrefurl=http://www.gychevy.com/new-chevy-equinox-omaha-ne/&docid=Y3esr76wEW5hBM&tbnid=QMiUhLO22li8oM:&w=640&h=480&bih=783&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwiQuquTztPPAhUq7IMKHRb_CX4QMwhcKDQwNA&iact=mrc&uact=8�
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://images.nadaguides.com/Models/320x240/2010-GMC-Sierra1500.png&imgrefurl=http://www.nadaguides.com/Cars/GMC/Sierra-1500&docid=ej3TANKzKwdRiM&tbnid=0h5lnGo-_p8iIM:&w=320&h=240&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwimlNzQh9HPAhUlyoMKHTIfDpk4yAEQMwgEKAEwAQ&iact=mrc&uact=8�
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://www.cartrucktrader.com/images.aspx/id-553035730-w-492-h-369/2017-chevrolet-traverse-730-p1.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.cartrucktrader.com/burleson-tx/2017-chevrolet-traverse-553035730.htm&docid=oaCQXUKOYPESgM&tbnid=9gKE5un-bBj2AM:&w=492&h=369&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwjb0IL80dPPAhUI6oMKHWseCRMQMwiLAShiMGI&iact=mrc&uact=8�
https://www.google.com/imgres?imgurl=http://o.aolcdn.com/dims-global/dims3/GLOB/legacy_thumbnail/788x525/quality/85/http://o.aolcdn.com/commerce/autodata/images/USC60GMT32AA021001.jpg&imgrefurl=http://www.autoblog.com/buy/2016-GMC-Sierra%2B3500HD-Base__4x4_Double_Cab_158.1_in._WB_DRW/photos/&docid=6wJhWUSdjg5ByM&tbnid=SulO4xOeFZ4DCM:&w=788&h=525&bih=827&biw=1440&ved=0ahUKEwjioKaukNHPAhWI34MKHYwWAfA4ZBAzCEooRDBE&iact=mrc&uact=8�


 

 

1 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Date:  November 9, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
 
From: Gary Mayer, Police Chief 
 Thomas Gordon, Lieutenant 
 MaryBeth Murz, Purchasing Manager 
 
 
Subject: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Police Officer 

Ballistic Vests 
 
 
History 
The Police Department provides ballistic vests to sworn police officers.  These ballistic vests provide 
enhanced protection to the officers during the course of performing their duties and response to critical 
incidents.  The current ballistic vests are no longer under the manufacturer’s warranty, and are at the end 
of their life cycle; necessitating the replacement of vests currently being used by the Police Department. 
 
Purchasing 
On November 3, 2016, a bid opening was conducted as required by City Charter and Code to purchase up 
to one hundred and eight (108) Ballistic Vests for the Police Department personnel.  The bid was posted on 
the Michigan Inter-governmental Trade Network (MITN) website; www.mitn.info.  Three (3) bid responses 
were received.  The award is recommended low bid as specified.  Below is a detailed summary of potential 
vendors: 

 
Companies notified via MITN 70 
Troy Companies notified via MITN 2 
Troy Companies - Active email Notification 2 
Troy Companies - Active Free 0 
Companies that viewed the bid  20 
Troy Companies that viewed the bid 0 
 

 
After reviewing the bid proposal, CMP Distributors, Inc. of Portland, MI was the lowest bidder meeting 
specifications to provide three (3) year requirements of new Ballistic Vests and is being recommended for the 
purchase of forty (40) Ballistic Vests in the current 2016-2017 fiscal year, thirty six (36) Ballistic Vests in the 
2017-2018 fiscal year, and thirty two (32) Ballistic Vest in the 2018-2019 fiscal year.   
 
The funds for these purchases are available in the Police Department in the fiscal years as detailed below.  
The below details reflect the unit prices for the ballistic vests with either a 5x8 or 7x10 protective trauma plate.  
Size and stature of individual officers determines the appropriate size trauma plate.  Quantities by year are 
estimated and do not include potential new hires.  The quantities listed are for three (3) year requirements. 
 
 
 
 

MITN provides a resourceful online platform to streamline the procurement 
process, reduce costs, and make it easier and more transparent for vendors to 
do business with the City of Troy. 
Active MITN members with a current membership and paying annual dues 
receive automatic electronic notification which allows instant access to Bids, 
RFPS and Quote opportunities with the City.   
Active MITN non-paying members are responsible to monitor and check the 
MITN website for opportunities to do business with the City. 
Inactive MITN member status can occur when a company does not renew 
their account upon expiration.  Inactive members cannot be notified of 
solicitations or access any bid information. 

 
 

http://www.mitn.info/
stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-04c



 

 

2 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 
  

Purchasing (continued) 
 
 

Fiscal Year Vest Qty. 
Unit Cost - 5x8 
Trauma Plate Total Cost 

2016-2017 40 $683.00 $27,320.00 
2017-2018 36 $703.49 $28,139.60 

           2018-2019        32          $724.60         $28,984.00 
TOTAL   $84,443.60 

 

Fiscal Year Vest Qty. 
Unit Cost - 7x10 

Trauma Plate Total Cost 
2016-2017  40 $692.00 $27,680.00 
2017-2018  36 $712.76 $28,510.40 

           2018-2019        32         $734.15          $29,366.00 
TOTAL   $85,556.40 

 
Financial 
The funds for these purchases are available in the Police Department in the fiscal years as detailed above.  
Also note these vests are reimbursable under the Department of Justice Bulletproof Vest Partnership Grant.  
This grant will reimburse the City 50% of the purchase price. 
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends awarding a contract for three (3) year requirements to provide sworn Police 
Officer Ballistic Vests for the Police Department to the lowest bidder meeting specifications, CMP 
Distributors, Inc. of Portland, MI for an estimated total cost of $85,556.40 as detailed above, all at unit 
prices contained in the bid tabulation dated November 3, 2016. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 16-17 Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 2 Ballistic Vests ITB-COT 16-36.doc 



Opening Date -- 11/3/2016 CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 16-36
Date Reviewed -- 11/3/2016 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 1

BALLISTIC VESTS

VENDOR NAME:
CITY:

Armor Express Generation II Razor Threat II, RZRG2-A-11 Neutral Vest Panels, RZRG2-A-11 Female Vest Panels, 

Estimated 
Qty Year Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost

40 2016-2017 795.00$    31,800.00$      778.44$   31,137.60$       683.00$   27,320.00$       

36 2017-2018 820.00$    32,800.00$      786.22$   31,448.80$       703.49$   28,139.60$       

32 2018-2019 845.00$    33,800.00$      794.08$   31,763.20$       724.60$   28,984.00$       
Estimated 

Qty Year Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost Unit Cost Total Cost

40 2016-2017 795.00$    31,800.00$      778.44$   31,137.60$       692.00$   27,680.00$       

36 2017-2018 820.00$    32,800.00$      786.22$   31,448.80$       712.76$   28,510.40$       

32 2018-2019 845.00$    33,800.00$      794.08$   31,763.20$       734.15$   29,366.00$       

WARRANTY:

AUTHORIZED DEALER: Y/N

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE ENCLOSED: Y/N

CONTACT INFORMATION: Hrs. of Operation
24 Hr. Phone #
Contact Name

REFERENCES: Y/N

PAYMENT TERMS:

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS:

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Signed Y/N

Forms (5): Y/N
Bold Type Indicates Low Bidder meeting Specification.

ATTEST: MaryBeth Murz, 
Susan Riesterer Purchasing Manager

G:ITB-COT 16-36 Tactical Vests

Yes

45-60 ARO

 Provided pricing by year for 
additional Concealable Carriers 
which could be purchased 
separately. 

Yes

Net30 Days

8:30am-5pm Mon.-Fri.
517 974 4276

Yes Yes

Yes Yes

Catherine Parks

 An authorized 
representative from CMP or 
Armor Express will measure 
Officers. 

5-6 Weeks ARO

8am-5pm Mon.-Fri.

Yes

 5 Yrs. Ballistics/18 mos. 
Carrier 

Yes

Yes

On Duty Gear, LLC Kiesler Police                  
Supply, Inc.

Port Huron, MI Jeffersonville, IN

 Custom Fitted.  To be custom sized for 
each officer. 

PROPOSAL:  FURNISH NEW BALLISTIC VESTS FOR THE CITY OF TROY POLICE DEPARTMENT.

ARA-SHOCK-ICW Trauma Plate 5x8 or 7x10, Revolution Concealable Carrier with Scent Lok.

SIZE AVAILABILITY:

Vest with Trauma Plate 5x8 & 
Concealable Carrier

Vest with Trauma Plate 7x10 & 
Concealable Carrier

CMP Distributors, Inc.

Portland, MI

Yes

Enna Bachelor

45 Days ARO

Yes

7am - 7pm Mon.-Sat.

Net30 Days

810 650 5004
Paul Riddell

 5 Yrs. Ballistics/18 mos. 
Carrier 

 5 Yrs. Ballistics/18 mos. 
Carrier 

Yes

Net30 Days

800 444 2950
Kelsie McMahel



 
 
Date:  October 21, 2016 
 
To:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
 
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  William J. Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
    
Subject:  Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – October 19, 2016 
  
At the Traffic Committee meeting of October 19, 2016, the following recommendations were 
made for City Council approval: 
 
3.  Request for Traffic Control – Welling at Calvert 
 

RESOLVED, that NO CHANGE be made at the intersection of Welling at Calvert. 
 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – Tutbury at Bretby 
 

RESOLVED, that the intersection of Tutbury at Bretby be MODIFIED from no traffic control to 
YIELD control on the Tutbury Lane approaches to the intersection. 

 
5.  Request for Traffic Control – Haldane at Niles 
 

RESOLVED, that the intersection of Haldane at Niles be MODIFIED from no traffic control to 
ALL-WAY STOP control at the intersection of Haldane and Niles. 

 
Minutes of the meeting are attached. 
 
 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2016\10_October 19\To CC re October 19_2016 TC Minutes and Recommendations.docx 

CITY COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-05



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

833

1:

Feet8330 417



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

1,435

1:

Feet1,4350 717



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

476

1:

Feet4760 238



Traffic Committee Minutes – October 19, 2016  DRAFT 

Page 1 of 4 
 

A regular meeting of the Troy Traffic Committee was held Wednesday, October 19, 2016 in the Lower 
Level Conference Room at Troy City Hall.  Pete Ziegenfelder called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.   
 
1. Roll Call 
 
Present:   Tim Brandstetter 
    Mitch Huber 
    Al Petrulis 
    Cynthia Wilsher 
    Pete Ziegenfelder 
                     
Absent:   Richard Kilmer 
         
Also present:  Terry Stuart, 6303 Tutbury 
    Justin Brox, 5844 Niles 
    Gordon Armstrong, 95 W. Square Lake 
    Lt. Eric Caloia, Fire Department  
    Sgt. Mike Szuminski, Police Department 
    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
         
2. Minutes – October 19, 2016 
 
Resolution # 2016-10-31 
Moved by Petrulis 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
To approve the September 21, 2016 minutes as printed. 
 
Yes:   Brandstetter, Huber, Petrulis, Wilsher, Ziegenfelder 
No:   None 
Absent:   Kilmer 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
REGULAR BUSINESS 
 
3.  Request for Traffic Control – Welling at Calvert 
 
At the September 21, 2016 Traffic Committee meeting, Mr. Bob Brokenshire of 1596 Welling requested 
that the intersection of Welling at Calvert be reviewed.  There are existing Yield signs on the Welling 
Drive approaches to Calvert.  He felt that the existing Yield signs did not provide the proper traffic control 
at the intersection.  Mr. Brokenshire stated that traffic does not yield the right-of-way, travels through the 
intersection at a high rate of speed, is unsafe for drivers and pedestrians and creates a hazardous 
condition.   
 
No residents were in attendance at the meeting to discuss the request. 
 
Traffic Engineering did receive one (1) phone call in opposition to any changes at the intersection. 
 
Mr. Brandstetter discussed the need for any changes at the intersection.  The Yield signs appear to be 
appropriate for the intersection based on the study by OHM. 
 
Mr. Petrulis discussed the only resident input received was in opposition to the request. 



Traffic Committee Minutes – October 19, 2016  DRAFT 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Resolution # 2016-10-32 
Moved by Brandstetter 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that NO CHANGE be made at the intersection of Welling at Calvert. 
 
Yes:   Brandstetter, Huber, Petrulis, Wilsher, Ziegenfelder 
No:   None 
Absent:   Kilmer 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
4.  Request for Traffic Control – Tutbury at Bretby 
 
Mr. Terry Stuart of 6303 Tutbury states that the lack of existing traffic control at the intersection of 
Tutbury at Bretby creates a hazardous condition.  Traffic does not yield the right-of-way and travels 
through the intersection at a high rate of speed and is unsafe for drivers and pedestrians.  Increased 
traffic due to the I-75 construction has further exacerbated the issue with higher volumes of traffic during 
the peak hours 
 
Terry Stuart of 6303 Tutubury was in attendance at the meeting to support the request for traffic control 
at the intersection.  Mr. Stuart discussed that the intersection is just east of Adams and driver confusion 
when they get to the intersection.  Trees at the intersection obstruct a driver’s view and lead to situations 
where drivers may not be able to see oncoming traffic.  The I75 construction has led to an increase in 
traffic and frustration by drivers.  Mr. Stuart supports Yield signs at the intersection. 
 
Mr. Petrulis stated that this is an odd intersection when you approach it and believes it requires some 
type of traffic control.  A Yield sign may be sufficient. 
 
Ms. Wilsher would rather see a Stop sign.  When you can’t see traffic at an intersection you should 
approach the intersection with caution. 
 
Mr. Brandstetter asked the residents if Tutbury was the appropriate street for Yield signs [they 
responded in the affirmative]. 
 
Mr. Petrulis recommended that the trees in the right-of-way be trimmed. 
 
Mr. Brandstetter added that even if the trees were trimmed there would still be the need for Yield signs 
at the intersection. 
 
Resolution # 2016-10-33 
Moved by Petrulis 
Seconded by Huber 
 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of Tutbury at Bretby be MODIFIED from no traffic control to YIELD 
control on the Tutbury Lane approaches to the intersection. 
 
Yes:   Brandstetter, Huber, Petrulis, Wilsher, Ziegenfelder 
No:   None 
Absent:   Kilmer 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



Traffic Committee Minutes – October 19, 2016  DRAFT 

Page 3 of 4 
 

5.  Request for Traffic Control – Haldane at Niles 
 
Mr. Gordon Armstrong of 95 W. Square Lake Road contacted the City’s Building Official regarding the 
lack of traffic control signs at the intersection of Haldane and Niles.  The resident stated that traffic does 
not yield the right-of-way and creates a hazardous condition at the intersection.    
 
Mr. Armstrong was in attendance at the meeting to discuss this request.  He reports that there are 16 
buildings on Niles and 30 houses, with 54 vehicles that he counted.  He has never seen a problem with 
residents on Niles or Haldane, but attributes the issue to cut through traffic from Livernois to Square 
Lake or vice versa.  Drivers take the intersection at high rates of speed and create an unsafe situation 
as they travel into the opposing lane of traffic during their turn.  Mr. Armstrong reports that there are 
many children in this area and in the interest of safety he believes Stop signs are appropriate at the 
intersection. 
 
Mr. Justin Brox of 5844 Niles was in attendance and supported what Mr. Armstrong stated.  Mr. Brox 
added that Livernois at Square Lake gets very congested and drivers cut through on Haldane and Niles 
to avoid the backup at the traffic signal.  He stated that this will always be a “high child neighborhood” 
due to the school near Niles and Square Lake. 
 
Ms. Wilsher added that there is a lot of vegetation at the intersection that obstructs a driver’s vision.  
She added that you must stop before proceeding. 
 
Mr. Petrulis discussed that the primary cut through was from northbound Livernois to westbound Square 
Lake to avoid the left turn backup at the Square Lake and Livernois intersection. 
 
Resolution # 2016-10-34 
Moved by Huber 
Seconded by Wilsher 
 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of Haldane at Niles be MODIFIED from no traffic control to STOP 
control on the Haldane Drive approaches to the intersection. 
 
This motion was amended by Mr. Huber and supported by Mr. Petrulis. 
 
Resolution # 2016-10-35 
Moved by Huber 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that the motion be AMENDED from STOP control on Haldane Drive approaches to the 
intersection to ALL-WAY STOP control at the intersection of Haldane and Niles. 
 
Yes:   Huber, Petrulis, Wilsher, Ziegenfelder 
No:   Brandstetter 
Absent:   Kilmer 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Brandstetter explained his no vote was based on unwarranted Stop signs at an intersection creating 
confusion for a driver than may not feel they need to stop.  This may create a false sense of security for 
drivers or pedestrians when they expect a driver to stop.  He also discussed that Stop signs may not 
eliminate cut through traffic. 
 
There was general discussion of cut through traffic as well as options other than signage that might be 



Traffic Committee Minutes – October 19, 2016  DRAFT 

Page 4 of 4 
 

appropriate. 
 
Resolution # 2016-10-36 
Moved by Huber 
Seconded by Petrulis 
 
RESOLVED, that the intersection of Haldane at Niles be MODIFIED from no traffic control to ALL-WAY 
STOP control at the intersection of Haldane and Niles. 
 
Yes:   Huber, Wilsher, Ziegenfelder 
No:   Brandstetter, Petrulis  
Absent:   Kilmer 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
6. Public Comment  
 
There was no additional public comment made. 
 
7. Other Business 
 
There was no other business to address. 
 
8.  Adjourn 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:23 p.m.  
 
                                          ___           
Pete Ziegenfelder, Chairperson    Bill Huotari, Deputy City Engineer/Traffic Engineer 
 
 
G:\Traffic\aaa Traffic Committee\2016\10_October 19\Minutes_10192016_DRAFT.docx 



 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
  

Date:  October 27, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
    
Subject: Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Six Permanent Easements from 

Forest Run, LLC – Forest Run Site Condominium, Sidwell #88-20-12-351-014 
   
 
History 
 
The Planning Commission granted preliminary site plan approval for Forest Run, a 13-unit site 
condominium on June 28, 2016. The development is located in the southwest ¼ of Section 12, on 
Long Lake Road east of John R. 
 
As part of the proposed development, the City of Troy received a warranty deed for detention 
purposes and six permanent easements for emergency access & ingress/egress, clear vision, 
sanitary sewers, sidewalks, storm sewers and water mains. The grantor of these property rights  
is Forest Run, LLC, owner of the property having Sidwell #88-20-12-351-014. 
 
The format and content of this warranty deed and permanent easements is consistent with 
conveyance documents previously accepted by City Council.  
 
 
Financial 
 
The consideration amount on each document is $1.00. 
 
 
Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached warranty deed and permanent 
easements consistent with our policy of accepting deeds and easements for development and 
improvement purposes. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\ForestRun.doc 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-07















































 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
  

Date:  November 9, 2016 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
    
Subject: Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Permanent Easement from GFA 

Harmony Developers, LLC, and to Vacate a Permanent Easement and Granted Right-
of-Way, West Oak III Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 & 019 

 
History 
 
The Planning Commission granted preliminary site plan approval for West Oak III, a 10 unit site 
condominium, on May 24, 2016. The site condominium is located in the southwest ¼ of Section 23, at 
the end of Boyd Street. 
 
On October 10, 2016, by Resolution #2016-10-1730J-12, City Council accepted two permanent 
easements for storm sewers and public utilities, and a warranty deed for an extension of Boyd Street. 
 
On November 4, 2016, while reviewing recorded documents, City of Troy staff discovered that the 
developer’s surveyor provided incorrect legal descriptions to the City which were attached as Exhibit 
A to the following two documents recorded at the Oakland County Register of Deeds on October 24, 
2016: 
 

a. A warranty deed, recorded in Liber 49991, Page 73; and 
b. A public utility easement recorded in Liber 49991, Page 75 

 
Immediately upon discovering the incorrect legal description, City staff contacted the developer, who 
consented to provide corrected legal descriptions and drawings, and to provide new conveyance 
documents. 
 
City staff will record the new permanent easement for public utilities and a warranty deed for road 
purposes with Oakland County Register of Deeds. Simultaneously, City staff will record quit claim 
deeds vacating the previously granted permanent easement for public utilities and warranty deed to 
clear title and interest the City currently has over the portion of land encumbered by the incorrect 
legal descriptions. 
 
 
Financial 
 
The consideration amount on each document is $1.00. 
 
 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
J-08



Recommendation 
 
City Management recommends that City Council accept the attached new warranty deed and 
permanent easement consistent with our policy of accepting deeds and easements for development 
and improvement purposes. 
 
Additionally, City Management seeks authorization for the Mayor and City Clerk to sign two quit 
claim deeds vacating any interest previously granted by the documents recorded in Liber 49991,  
Page 73, and Liber 49991, Page 75. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\GFA Corrections.doc 



Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax
maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this

data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

738

1:

Feet7380 369























stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01a











ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING FINAL September 20, 2016 

1 

On September 20, 2016, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chairman 
Clark called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Glenn Clark 
Thomas Desmond 
David Eisenbacher 
Orestis Kaltsounis 
Allen Kneale 
David Lambert 
Philip Sanzica 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  August 16, 2016 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the August 16, 2016 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
No changes. 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, THOMAS LEININGER OF ADVANCED BUILDERS, 1941 

FRENCH CREEK – In order to construct a roofed patio enclosure without walls, a 6 
foot variance to the required 45 foot rear yard setback. 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Desmond 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the request. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01b





stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01c











BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL OCTOBER 5, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on October 5, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Amanda Anderson 
Andrew Schuster 
 
Members Absent 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 7, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASE 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, CHRISTIAN E. TAZZIA FOR CONTROLLED POWER 

COMPANY, 1955 STEPHENSON – A variance to install a stairway chairlift resulting 
in a 33.75 inch stairway width and a handrail on only one side of the stairway. 
Section 1009.4 requires a 44 inch minimum width and Section 1009.15 requires 
handrails on both sides. - 2012 MICHIGAN BUILDING CODE 
 
Mr. Grusnick clarified for the record the required stairway width for a 50 or less 
occupancy load is 36 inches; therefore the variance request before the Board is for 
a 2.25 inch reduction in the width of the stairway. 
 
Present from Controlled Power Company were Christian Tazzia, President, and 
Jeffrey J. Stumpf, Controller. 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01d







PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2016 
  
 
 

1 
 

Chair Edmunds called the Regular meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission to order at 
7:00 p.m. on October 11, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Ollie Apahidean 
Karen Crusse 
Donald Edmunds 
Carlton M. Faison 
Michael W. Hutson 
Tom Krent 
Padma Kuppa 
John J. Tagle 
 
Absent: 
Philip Sanzica 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Planning Director 
Ben Carlisle, Carlisle Wortman Associates 
Julie Quinlan Dufrane, Assistant City Attorney 
Claire Hao, Student Representative 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Student Representative Claire Hao was introduced and welcomed by all. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-10-062 
Moved by: Tagle 
Support by: Crusse 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # PC-2016-10-063 
Moved by: Krent 
Support by: Apahidean 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the September 27, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2016 
  
 
 

2 
 

Yes: Apahidean, Crusse, Edmunds, Krent, Hutson, Tagle 
Abstain: Faison, Kuppa 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4. PUBLIC COMMENT – Items not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

CONDITIONAL REZONING 
 

5. PUBLIC HEARING - CONDITIONAL REZONING APPLICATION (File Number CR 
JPCR2016-002) – Proposed IHOP Restaurant and Retail, East side of Rochester, North 
of Big Beaver (1033 Urbancrest, 3130 Rochester, 3132-3142 Rochester), Section 23, 
From R-1E (One Family Residential) District to GB (General Business) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle reviewed the Conditional Rezoning application. He specifically addressed 
parking and recommended to postpone the item so the applicant could address the 
parking concerns as well as minor concerns identified in his report dated October 6, 
2016. 
 
The applicant John Baker was present. Mr. Baker said he is in support of the 
recommendation to postpone and is anxious to address the number of elements and 
come back before the Board with a revised plan. 
 
Chair Edmunds opened the Public Hearing. 
 
• Gary Curtis, representative of Troy Masonic Center, 1032 Hartland, addressed 

parking as relates to the Masonic Center’s parking lot. 
• Julie Addison, 1137 Foxboro, addressed parking as relates to existing parking 

concerns at Rochester Commons. 
• Jeff Perez, 1057 Urbancrest, addressed traffic, proposed fence and hours of 

operation. 
 
Chair Edmunds closed the Public Hearing. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Screening; fence along entire perimeter as well as landscaping. 
• Traffic study not justified; application reviewed by City Traffic Engineer. 
• Clarification between traffic study and parking study. 
• Restaurant(s) hours of operation; not known at this time. 
• Mitigation of negative impacts to surrounding properties; volume and location of 

drive-through restaurant speaker box, restaurant(s) hours of operation. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 11, 2016 
  
 
 

3 
 

Resolution # PC-2016-10-064 
Moved by: Krent 
Seconded by: Faison 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby postpones this item to provide the 
applicant an opportunity to revise the application to address shortcomings identified in 
the report. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Sanzica 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW 
 
6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP JPLN2016-0027) – Proposed 

Troy City Center (Fidelity Investments), Northeast Corner of Big Beaver and Crooks 
(888 W. Big Beaver), Section 21, Currently Zoned BB (Big Beaver) District 
 
Mr. Carlisle gave a review on the Preliminary Site Plan application and the revised site 
plan received from the applicant today that was forwarded to Board members via email. 
He addressed proposed improvements, parking reconfiguration, existing site access, 
building elevation, building materials and building entrance. Mr. Carlisle said the 
application meets all Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Mr. Carlisle addressed future outlots on the entire site as relates to parking and 
circulation. He said a parking study would be a requirement for future outlots on the site. 
 
Mr. Savidant said the revised Preliminary Site Plan was reviewed by the City Traffic 
Engineer and there were no concerns noted. 
 
Present to represent the applicant were Project Architect Jason Krieger and David Vivio 
of O’Brien Construction. 
 
There was discussion on: 
• Conceptual plan for entire site; 6 outlots, apartment building, parking deck. 
• Future outlots in relation to parking and circulation. 
• Timetable and site location of Fidelity Investments outlot. 
• Timetable of future outlots and entire project. 
• Prospective tenants of future outlots. 
• Cohesiveness of architecture throughout entire project. 
• Building heights throughout entire project. 







Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  

Regular Meeting – October 18, 2016 

 

1 

 

The meeting was called to order at 3:12 p.m. in the Council Boardroom, Troy City Hall 
by committee member Mary Kerwin.  
 
Members Present: Rosemary Kornacki, Vice Chair (arrived 3:26 pm) 

Mary Kerwin 
   Charles Salgat 
  Robert Swartz 
 
Members Absent: Joseph Vassallo, Chair 
 
Also Present:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
   Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
   Mark F. Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 
    
APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM APRIL 19, 2016  
 
Resolution # BRA 2016-10-01 
Moved by Salgat 
Seconded by Swartz 
 
RESOLVED, that the BRA approve the minutes of the April 19, 2016 annual meeting. 
 
Yeas:  3  
Nays:   0  
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 2017 Regular Meeting Schedule 
 
Resolution # BRA 2016-10-02 
Moved by Salgat 
Seconded by Swartz 
RESOLVED, that the BRA adopts the 2017 Regular Meeting Schedule. 
 
Yeas:  3 
Nays:  0 
 

 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01f



Draft Minutes Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority  

Regular Meeting – October 18, 2016 

 

2 

 

B. Revolving Loan Fund Balance Update  
 
Mark F. Miller referred to the financial information included in the agenda packet 
and provided an update on the Revolving Loan Fund balance. 
 

C. Senate Bill 1061 – Transformational Brownfield Plan 
 

Mark F. Miller and Glenn Lapin referred to the bill analysis included in the agenda 
packet and provided information regarding the proposed legislation. 

 
D. Potential BRA Projects:  888 W. Big Beaver; Met Hotel; Axtell/Maple 

 
Mark F. Miller and Glenn Lapin provided information regarding potential future 
BRA projects.  No new BRA applications for assistance have been received to 
date.       

 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
General discussion took place. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:43 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is April 18, 2017 – 3:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Chairperson                                                                  Date 
 
 
___________________________________________________________ 
Secretary       Date 
 
 

 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING DRAFT October 18, 2016 

1 

On October 18, 2016, at 7:30 p.m., in the Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, Chairman Clark 
called the Zoning Board of Appeals meeting to order. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Daniel Agauas 
Glenn Clark 
Thomas Desmond 
David Eisenbacher 
Orestis Kaltsounis 
David Lambert 
Philip Sanzica 
 
Also Present: 
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  September 20, 2016 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Eisenbacher 
 
RESOLVED, to approve the September 20, 2016 meeting minutes. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
No changes. 
 

4. HEARING OF CASES 
 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, KEITH N. LEE, 2116 BRINSTON – A variance to allow an 

addition to a nonconforming pool deck. The addition has already been constructed. 
The pool is nonconforming because it is located in a front yard. 
 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Desmond 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance subject to performing aesthetic improvements to 
the entire pool as offered by the applicant. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01g



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING DRAFT October 18, 2016 

2 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, ERIC BRAKKE FOR MICHIGAN SUNROOMS, 5330 
STANDISH – In order to construct an addition to the rear of the house, a 6.5 foot 
variance to the required 40 foot rear yard setback. 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Sanzica  
 
RESOLVED, to move the item to the end of “Hearing of Cases” because no one was 
present to represent the application. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 
(Refer to page 3 for further action on Agenda item B) 
 

C. VARIANCE REQUEST, GRANT DRYOVAGE FOR ATEX BUILDERS LLC, 633 
BURTMAN – In order to rebuild a detached, nonconforming garage, a 4 foot 
variance from the required 6 foot side yard setback. The existing garage is 
nonconforming because it is set back less than 6 feet from the property line. 
 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Desmond 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

D. VARIANCE REQUEST, DANIEL AND KIMBERLY ECKL, 5905 ENDICOTT – In 
order to build a roof over an existing uncovered front porch, a 5.5 foot variance to 
the required 30 foot front yard setback. 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Desmond 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

E. VARIANCE REQUEST, GARY ABITHEIRA, 1605 E LONG LAKE – In order to build 
two new houses, the property will be split and variances are requested for each of 
the proposed houses as follows: 1) for the proposed southerly parcel, a 3 foot 
variance from the required 30 foot front yard setback adjacent to Allison Drive; and 
2) for the proposed northerly parcel, a 10 foot variance from the required 30 foot 
front yard setback adjacent to Allison Drive. 



ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MEETING DRAFT October 18, 2016 

3 

Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, to grant the variance. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, ERIC BRAKKE FOR MICHIGAN SUNROOMS, 5330 
STANDISH – In order to construct an addition to the rear of the house, a 6.5 foot 
variance to the required 40 foot rear yard setback. 
 
Moved by Lambert 
Seconded by Agauas 
 
RESOLVED, to postpone the request to the November 15, 2016 Zoning Board of 
Appeals meeting. 
 
Yes: All 
 
MOTION PASSED 

 
5. COMMUNICATIONS – None 
 
6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS – None 
 
7. PUBLIC COMMENT – None 
 
8. ADJOURNMENT – The Zoning Board of Appeals meeting ADJOURNED at 8:45 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
        
Glenn Clark, Chairman 
 
 
 
 
        
Paul Evans, Zoning and Compliance Specialist 
 
G:\ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS\Minutes\2016\Draft\2016 10 18 ZBA Minutes Draft.doc 
 



Draft Minutes Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee     
Regular Meeting of October 24, 2016 

 

 

1 

 

The meeting was called to order at 3:33 p.m. in the Council Boardroom, Troy City Hall 
by Chairperson Robin Beltramini.   
 
Members Present: Chairperson Robin Beltramini 

Ellen Hodorek (alternate) 
Paul Hoef 

   John Sharp 
    
Members Absent: David Shields 

Dane Slater (alternate) 
Irene Spanos (County representative, non-voting) 
Nikolas Vitale 
 

Also Present:  Lori Bluhm, City Attorney 
Glenn Lapin, Economic Development Specialist 
Mark F. Miller, Secretary/Treasurer 

 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Resolution # LDFA 2016-10-01 
Moved by Hoef 
Seconded by Hodorek 
 
RESOLVED, that the LDFA approve the minutes of the April 25, 2016 regular meeting. 
 
Yeas:  4  
Nays:   0 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 

A. Joint LDFA Automation Alley SmartZone Update 
 

Mark F. Miller provided an update on the initiative. A Ratification Agreement by 
the State Treasurer for the Automation Alley SmartZone extension was executed 
on September 29, 2016.  The Michigan Economic Development Corporation will 
be drafting an Agreement for execution, but no timeline was provided.   
 

      B.  Move Across Troy Update 
 

Mark F. Miller provided an update on this initiative to improve non-motorized 
access along the Big Beaver corridor.  Concept designs for a proposed 
crosswalk on East Big Beaver between Bellingham and John R was included in 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01h



Draft Minutes Joint Local Development Finance Authority Troy Subcommittee     
Regular Meeting of October 24, 2016 

 

 

2 

 

the agenda packet.  Additional discussion took place regarding Move Across 
Troy projects including the Frightful 5K run, proposed Big Beaver shuttle service 
and proposed future crosswalk development.  
 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. 2017 Regular Meeting Schedule 
 

Resolution # LDFA 2016-10-02 
Moved by Sharp 
Seconded by Hodorek 
 
RESOLVED, that the 2017 Regular Meeting Schedule be adopted. 
 
Yeas:  4 
Nays:  0 
 
BOARD MEMBER COMMENT 
 
Discussion took place regarding the lack of sidewalks available leading to the proposed 
crosswalks, Big Beaver shuttle service and other Big Beaver amenities.  The suggestion 
was made to consider a future LDFA project to support the construction of sidewalks in 
key areas to encourage better pedestrian access along the corridor. 
 
It was suggested that new Automation Alley Executive Director Tom Kelly be invited to 
attend the April 24, 2017 LDFA meeting. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 
Meeting was adjourned at 3:58 p.m. 
 
The next scheduled meeting is April 24, 2017 – 3:30 p.m. 
 
 

 

 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2016 
 
 

1 
 

Chair Dziurman called the Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals to order at 
3:00 p.m. on November 2, 2016 in the Council Board Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Members Present 
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
Gary Abitheira 
Amanda Anderson 
Andrew Schuster 
 
Members Absent 
Brian Kischnick 
 
Support Staff Present: 
Mitch Grusnick, Building Official/Code Inspector 
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
Also Present: 
Attached and made a part hereof is the signature sheet of those present and signed in 
at this meeting. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
Moved by: Abitheira 
Support by: Schuster 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the October 5, 2016 Regular meeting as 
submitted. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. HEARING OF CASES 

 
A. VARIANCE REQUEST, MALLIK GUDI FOR BIRCHWOOD ESTATES 

HOMEOWNERS ASSOCIATION, RETENTION POND NEXT TO 2804 
BIRCHDALE (Parcel 88-20-24-229-010) – The petitioner is requesting a variance to 
install a 4 foot high aluminum fence 5 feet into the required front yard. The Fence 
Code limits the height of front yard fences at this location to 30 inches.  
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received no written response to the public 
hearing notices. 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-01i



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2016 
 
 

2 
 

The applicant Mallik Gudi was present. Mr. Gudi is the Vice President of Birchwood 
Estates Homeowners Association. 
 
The homeowners association is responsible for maintenance of the retention pond 
and would be responsible for maintenance of the fence should the variance be 
granted. 
 
Chair Dziurman opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no 
one present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Anderson 
Support by: Abitheira 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested for Parcel 88-20-24-229-010, for 
the following reason: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 

intent of Chapter 83. 
 
Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

B. VARIANCE REQUEST, JAKE MEADOWS FOR WILLIAM BEAUMONT 
HOSPITAL, 44201 DEQUINDRE – A variance from the Sign Code to replace an 89 
square foot ground sign with a 148 square foot ground sign. The site currently has 
numerous signs. The hospital campus site is allowed a total of two signs. 
 
Mr. Grusnick reported the department received no written responses to the public 
hearing notices. 
 
The applicant Jake Meadows of Beaumont Hospital was present. 
 
Chair Dziurman opened the floor for public comment. Acknowledging there was no 
one present to speak, the floor was closed. 
 
Moved by: Schuster 
Support by: Anderson 
 
RESOLVED, To grant the variance as requested, for the following reason: 
 
1. The variance would not be contrary to the public interest or general purpose and 

intent of Chapter 85. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT NOVEMBER 2, 2016 
 
 

3 
 

Yes: All present (4) 
Absent: Kischnick 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
4. COMMUNICATIONS 

 
None. 
 

5. PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
None. 
 

6. MISCELLANEOUS BUSINESS 
 
None. 

 
7. ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Regular meeting of the Building Code Board of Appeals adjourned at 3:15 p.m. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
  
Theodore Dziurman, Chair 
 
 
 
 
  
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Building Code Board of Appeals Minutes\2016\Draft\2016 11 02 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 





stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-02a





Supporting the educational nature  
programs and activities of the 

Stage Nature Center 
6685 Coolidge Hwy. 

Troy, MI  48098 
248.688.9703 

www.stagenaturecenter.org 

Where people and nature meet 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-02b



A Message From The President Of The Troy Nature Society 

During the past year we have continued to grow and expand our reach into the environmental educa-

tion world.  We have added new programs, rebranded as the Stage Nature Center, recruited new board 

members and created a Monarch Butterfly Way Station.  The Monarch Way Station will put us on the 

map with other entities that provide this type of vital venue for monarch butterflies migrating annually 

to and from Mexico.  This important initiative was aided by the Girl Scouts who provided helping hands 

and youthful exuberance to the project.  

 

The organization’s rebranding that began in 2015 has allowed us to consolidate the various identities of 

the facility into one identity.  A part-time marketing person was engaged to facilitate in this effort.  Re-

branding makes fundraising more efficient by focusing our efforts on one brand and eliminating confu-

sion over who we are for our donors, supporters and members. 

  

With input from Troy School District Curriculum Coordinators, we continued to transition our educa-

tional programs to align with Michigan Science Standards adopted by the State in 2015.  In anticipation 

of increased demand for school and other programming, a full time Assistant Naturalist position was 

recently added to our teaching staff. 

 

The installation of several new board members has brought fresh ideas and enthusiasm to our board.  

It also provides us with access to areas of expertise that strengthens us and promotes steady growth 

for the organization. 

 

During the 2016 fiscal year, we were extremely pleased to have the continuing patronage of Jim and 

Shelly Green, Miller Vein Troy, Kelly Services Foundation, Tringali Sanitation, Troy Garden Club, Leon & 

Lulu  and Whole Food Market Troy.  Generous support was also received from Beaumont Health, Michi-

gan Schools and Government Credit Union and the Phillip and Elizabeth Filmer Memorial Charitable 

Trust.   

 

Finally, as our current operating agreement expires in 2017 we look forward to our continued partner-

ship with the City of Troy as we prepare for renewal of a collaborative alliance that will provide even 

more innovative programs and healthy activities for all to enjoy. 

 

The board of directors, staff and our many volunteers thank you for your continued support of our 

efforts to maintain and expand the benefits of the Stage Nature Center to our community. 

 

Tom Lakocy 

 

President 
Troy Nature Society 

1



In The Beginning 
Land for the Stage Nature Center (SNC) was originally purchased by the City of Troy in 

the 1970s and is located at 6685 Coolidge Hwy. in Troy, just south of South Blvd.   At 

the time of acquisition, there was an older home on the property that was initially 

used as the nature center building.  In 2002, the old structure was demolished and the 

current 8,200 square foot interpretive nature center building was constructed using 

funds received from a government grant to the City of Troy.  This center for learning  

contains classrooms, a public research library, an observation bee hive, a wildlife view-

ing area and an exhibition lobby with a live reptile and amphibian display.   The headwaters of the Rouge River flow 

through this unique 100-acre preserve.   More than 145 plant and animal species may be viewed throughout the 

grounds.  An outdoor play area features climbing boulders, and a paved path provides wheelchair access to the 

streamside forest.  Within the nature center boundaries are two miles of trails, which pass through upland forest, 

meadows, streamside wetlands, cattail marsh and a newly constructed Monarch Butterfly Way Station.   

 

In 2010, in response to the planned closure of the Stage Nature Center by the City of Troy, a small but devoted group 

of citizens  came together to create the Troy Nature Society, a 501(c)(3) non-profit organization.   The Board of Direc-

tors immediately began raising funds for operations.  The society assumed operational management of the nature 

center on July 1, 2011 and began offering educational nature and science programs.     

 

This was a critical time in the transition of this valued community resource from City government to non-profit man-

agement and funding.  The Troy Nature Society sought members, volunteers and financial supporters to ensure that  

the community may continue to enjoy the benefits of time spent in the out-of-doors.   In July 2011, the society hired 

Debra Williams as its Lead Naturalist to organize and conduct educational nature and science programs.  Several pro-

gram instructors were also hired to assist with scheduled programs and school groups.  During the first fiscal year of 

operations, TNS provided services for 8,253 visitors, students and program participants. 

TNS Now 
Activities at the nature center include public programs geared toward families, toddlers and senior adults.  Additional-

ly we conduct programming for school and community groups along with guided nature walks and targeted school 

outreach nature studies.  The preserve is a valuable community asset offering quiet retreat to solitary observers,     

couples, Scout groups, families, and school children who come to enjoy the natural beauty of the preserve.  Many take 

the opportunity to capture photos of the wildlife for their own use and to enhance the society’s publicity materials.   

In the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, TNS set high records for program attendance and visitors enjoying the beauty 

of the preserve along with its healthy outdoor activities: 

 TNS provided services for 21,219 individuals, students and program participants. A 15% increase over the previous 

year. 

 The organization conducted 104 school field trips at the nature center along with 12 outreach field trips by TNS In-

structors to local schools.  These school/school outreach programs served a total of 5,478 PreK-12 grade students 

who were provided with hands-on experience in nature.  A 5% increase from the previous year. 

 The organization conducted 155 public and group programs at the nature center and other venues. These programs 

served 6,546 individuals (ages two years old through senior adult) with age-appropriate programs designed to en-

hance learning in a natural environment and increase knowledge of good stewardship.  A 15% increase from the pre-

vious year. 

 The organization’s dedicated corps of 225 individuals volunteered an amazing 2,837 hours in support of TNS pro-

grams, activities and initiatives.   

 The number of organizational memberships rose to 255.  An increase of 10% from the previous year. 

 Multiple Clean-Up days are held annually throughout the year to maintain and beautify the trails and grounds.  

2



Leadership 
Board Members 

The Troy Nature Society is supported by a volunteer board comprised of educators, 

administrators, a geologist and those with backgrounds in wildlife preservation, 

business management, marketing  and finance.  Financial support is a board re-

quirement with which 100% of the society’s board  members comply.  Board mem-

bers serve on at least one of five board committees; financial oversight, educational 

programming, fundraising,    personnel management and board development.  All 

members are involved in   strategic planning, fundraising, program development 

and program evaluation.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Program Staff 

The administration of the society includes an Executive Director responsible for oversight and fundraising     

activities.  Carla Reeb was hired in July 2012 with over twenty years nonprofit management experience.  The    

society has a Lead Naturalist and an Assistant Naturalist employed full time with extensive backgrounds in na-

ture education:  organizing, executing and evaluating educational nature and science programs.  Additionally, 

nine program instructors are employed “as needed” to help support the many TNS educational programs as 

they are offered throughout the year.  Recently, the society hired a part-time Marketing Specialist to develop 

public service announcements and to promote awareness of the organization through social and print media. 

Additionally, a part-time Program Assistant provides administrative support for the program staff along with 

acting as the organization’s Volunteer Coordinator. 

 

 

 

 

 

Volunteer Corps 

The society has a dedicated corps of 225 volunteers.  Comprising 98% of our work force, these devoted individ-
uals, ages 14+, donated time and effort to help with such activities as:  educational program assistance, trail 
maintenance, clean-up projects, Maple Syrup program, fundraising events, blue bird monitoring, front desk re-
ception and administrative support.    

Members 

During the FY16 fiscal year, TNS membership grew to 250 members.  All membership revenue supports the 
programs and activities of the society.  Membership benefits includes voting rights at the annual meeting and 
discounted fees when participating in certain TNS programs. 

3

FY2017 Officers FY2017 Board Members 

Tom Lakocy - President Arnold Braver Seema Ibrahim Ann Neuser 

Mary Creager, PhD — VP Joan Cooper Meagan Kurnat Nathan Wright 

Larry Littman — Treasurer Nicole Fleming Susie Kowalski   

Roger Kowalski—Secretary Lucinda Hoose Maheem Syed   

  Program Instructors 

Carla Reeb – Executive Director Layne Brown Michelle Golembieski 
Debbie Williams – Lead Naturalist Lori Brown Sarah Grange 

Christina Funk – Assistant Naturalist Danielle Durham Nancy Klein 

Tina Catron – Marketing Specialist Lisa Ferdubinski Kelly Sakorafos 

Cindy Wymer - Accountant Linda Friedman   

Hanna Doniger – Program Support Asst.     



Mission 

Our overarching mission is to provide resources and education to inspire the  
appreciation and preservation of nature.  Specifically, the objectives of the   
society are to: 

 Provide healthy outdoor experiences and educational activities for          
individuals of all ages 

 Create an understanding of the value and necessity of stewardship of our 
natural environment 

 Preserve and protect the Stage Nature Center for future generations 

Our Vision 

The Troy Nature Society will become the exemplary community resource for nature education and preservation in 

the Troy area.  We believe in making learning fun!  While striving to achieve our vision, the Society will continue to 

assess our performance in the following areas:   

-  Education 

 Offer innovative programs developed from current research, national trends and community needs 

 Provide a wide range of program offerings for people to view and interact with the natural  environment  

 Act as a resource to the community for nature related questions 

 - Preservation 

 Maintain and improve the Stage Nature Center  

 Provide a physically safe, peaceful and well-maintained environment for visitors of Stage Nature Center 

 -  Collaborative Relationships 

 Cultivate relationships with community organizations 

 Participate in the community as a forward thinking and challenging leader 

 Develop a vibrant and involved support base 

 Cultivate relationships with organizations having similar purposes 

 

Program Benefits 
Along with providing educational programming, our nature center and its activities provide numerous benefits  

including: 

 Natural features and spaces important to defining community image and distinctive character 

 A facility that contributes to educational and cultural benefits 

 Protection for important natural systems 

 Active and passive recreational opportunities 

 Healthy lifestyles enhancement by facilitating improvements in physical fitness through exercise, and also by 
facilitating positive emotional, intellectual and social experiences 

 

Non-Discrimination Policy 

The Troy Nature Society affirms a policy of non-discrimination with regards to persons on the basis of age, 

sex, marital status, race, color, creed, national origin, religion, disability, or political affiliation.   This policy 

shall pertain to staff, volunteers, and clients. 

4



Making a Positive Difference In Our Community 

Public Programs 

TNS offers the public a variety of educational nature and science programs geared for all ages - toddlers to 
senior adults - on a year round basis.  These programs help children and adults increase their understanding 
and stewardship of our natural environment.  We accomplish this by interpreting the natural world around 
us and acting as an educational resource in biology, ecology and natural history for all our students, young 
and old.  One of our most popular public programs is our week-long Summer Day Camp sessions offered to 
reinforce children’s learning experience during the summer months.  Additionally we partner with such 
groups as Michigan DNR to provide classroom facilities for public outdoor education programs. 

 
School Programming 

TNS offers educators a variety of programs at the nature center that meet public, private and home-
schooled students’ academic needs.  Each program provides students with hands-on experience in nature 
and is designed to enhance the school’s core curriculum.  We utilize animal mounts, pelts, skulls, shells and 
other materials to ensure a first-class view of the world around us.   Every program is designed for partici-
pants to learn about nature and science and includes indoor classroom instruction followed by outdoor   
activities and a guided hike through the preserve. 

 
School Outreach 

Our Instructors bring TNS programs right into the classrooms of local schools.  We offer a variety of out-
reach programs that fulfill the instructional and educational needs of the school.  Like the programs held at 
the nature center, all outreach programs are designed to enhance the school’s core curriculum and include 
hands-on interaction with mounts, pelts and other biofacts. 
 
Scouts/Groups 

As a support to organized troops and groups, we offer programs that meet requirements for members to 
come and complete their nature related badge or achievement.  Current programs include those geared 
toward Boy Scouts, Cub Scouts and Junior Girl Scouts. 

 
Junior Naturalist Club 
This very popular award-winning program is dedicated to teaching children from 4 years of age tthrough the 
fifth grade about nature with members meeting monthly from September to July.  Club members receive        
educational instruction along with a naturalist kit and participate in hands-on activities and crafts at every 
session.  The eleven-month program concludes with a week long day-camp.  On the final day of the camp, 
club members and their families gather to enjoy games and are treated to a barbecue followed by an 
awards ceremony.  Club members receive awards for completing projects, doing work at home, submitting 
book reports and program attendance. 

 
Maple Syrup Event 

March is a special time for TNS and the families of our community.  TNS 
holds its annual Maple Syrup Event for three consecutive Saturdays every 
March.  This educational family event is typically attended by 1,000 guests 
who venture into the woods on a guided tour, visit an historic sugar camp 
to learn how maple trees are tapped and see for themselves how the sap is 
harvested.  Participants sample sap, learn more about syrup making and 
visit our sugar shed to see a wood-stoked sap evaporator in action.  After 
the tour, everyone is treated to mini waffles topped with delicious maple 
syrup.   

5



Program Attendance 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Program Evaluation 

Program evaluations from students participating in the program are collected and tabulated.  Educators also 

evaluate the program for academic effectiveness.  Teacher comments provide both quantitative and qualita-

tive information regarding the overall impact of programs  along with providing direction for future pro-

grams that promote education, healthy lifestyles and good stewardship of our environment.  

Public Awareness 

TNS reaches out to our community through mailings, local distribution of bro-

chures, public service announcements (PSAs), media events, TNS website, social 

media sites and participation in local community events to increase awareness of 

TNS.  We also partner with the Troy Historical Village and other organizations 

serving similar populations. 

Public program announcements are placed in the city’s premiere magazine “Troy 

Today” which is distributed to approximately 32,000 households and businesses 

quarterly. 

Information packets on TNS school and school outreach programs are emailed and direct mailed annually to 

nearly 500 school and school districts across the tri-county area. 

PSA’s are distributed monthly to local papers to create community awareness of TNS programs, activities and 

volunteer opportunities which are also advertised on the TNS website. 

Additionally, the Executive Director speaks at local community groups throughout the tri-county area making 

them aware of sponsorship opportunities along with educational programs and activities offered at the       

nature center. 

In August 2015, TNS held its fifth annual Ice Cream Social Open House Event.  Nearly 500 people attended this 

free community event where they were introduced to TNS, toured the exhibit hall, enjoyed ice cream sun-

daes and participated in family activities, crafts, scavenger hunts and guided trail walks. 

6

ATTENDANCE TOTALS FOR FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2016   

  Group Visitations (Schools/Scouts/Senior Groups/Home School Groups) 5,259 

  Outreach Programs & Lectures 1,683 

  Public Programs & Special Events 4,558 

  Birthday Parties 533 

  Walk-In Visitations 9,186 

  Grand Total 21,219 

 



Funding 

Funding for TNS programs and activities comes from individuals, foundations, the City of Troy, corporations, 

membership fees, program fees, fundraising events and facility rental fees.  Contributors providing financial 

and/or in-kind support for TNS programs and activities during the 2016 fiscal year include: 

In addition, we have an established annual Wine and Beer Tasting fundraiser with nearly 300 guests who 
attend.  There are approximately 225 TNS Members supporting our programs and activities.   

  

Financials 

In 2011, the society began operating the nature center under a two-year agreement with the City of Troy.  The 
agreement called for approximately $35,000 annually in city support of services, building maintenance and  
supplies for the nature center.   In the spring of 2013, the City of Troy renewed its operating agreement with 
the society through 2017.  In addition to the City of Troy services support of the nature center shown below, a 
$75,000 financial investment was made to TNS in the 2016 fiscal year. 

 
Revenue & Expenses FYE 6/30/2015 FYE 6/30/2016 

Donations & Grants $                               70,120 $                                 38,285 

Fundraising                                   15,391                                    20,977 

Membership Dues                                     7,925                                      9,165 

Program Fees                                   52,010                                    53,601 

Retail Sales                                     1,619                                      1,266 

Interest Income                                                   47                                                    15 

City Investment*                                   75,000                                    75.000 

Total Revenue $                              222,112 $                               198,309 

Wages & Payroll Taxes                                 116,247                                  129,494 

Contract Services                                     2,047                                    14,460 

Program Expenses                                   13,303                                    13,976 

Administrative Expenses                                    56,191                                    25,902 

Total Expenses $                              187,778 $                               183,832 

*Figures do not include $35,000/annually for other city services and supplies provided in support of maintaining the 
nature center. 

7

Michigan Schools & Gov. Credit Union 
Miller Vein of Troy 

Larry and Nancy Piotrowski 
Tringali Sanitation 

City of Troy 
Troy Garden Club 

Village Club Foundation 
Dr. and Mrs. Stephen Wang 
Whole Foods Market Troy 

Alpha Delta Kappa 
Beaumont Health 

Filmer Memorial Charitable Trust 
Jim and Shelly Green 

Karen Greenwood 
Kelly Services Foundation 
Tom and Michelle Lakocy 

Leon & Lulu 
Christal Lewandowski 



FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 

How is the Society funded?  TNS operates on the contributions it receives 
from members, foundations, City of Troy, corporations, individuals, commu-
nity organizations and fundraising events.   

What kinds of programs does TNS offer at the nature center?   High quality 
nature and science programs are offered year-round to the public, local 
schools and community groups.  We also offer our award-winning Junior Nat-
uralist Club program for children ages 4 years through the fifth grade along 
with programs for Brownies, Scouts, Cubs, Webelos and other organized 
groups.  All programs are offered for a minimal fee. 

How is the organization staffed?   Currently, the organization employs an Executive Director who over-
sees operations and fundraising activities; a Lead Naturalist and Assistant Naturalist oversee all edu-
cational programming; nine program instructors assist with programs as they are scheduled; a part 
time Marketing Specialist and Accountant; along with a Program Support Assistant supports pro-
grams and manages the recruiting, training and scheduling of volunteers. 

What types of volunteer help do you need?  Individuals offer support in areas such as educational pro-
gram assistance, various support committees, trail maintenance, park clean-up projects, our annual 
maple syrup event, fundraising, blue bird monitoring, photography club, front desk help and adminis-
trative support. 

Is there a fee to visit the center?  There is no fee to walk the trails or visit the nature center building.  
Donations are accepted and greatly appreciated. 

What are the hours of operation?  Trails are open to the public year round daily from dawn to dusk.  The 
nature center building is open Tuesday through Friday from 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. and Saturday 
10:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. with the exception of holidays. The exhibit hall is open Wednesday and 
Thursday evenings until 7:00 pm during summer months and also when special programs and classes 
are offered.  

6685 Coolidge Hwy. 
Troy, MI  48098

The Stage Nature Center is managed 
by the Troy Nature Society (TNS),  

a non-profit organization  

Troy Nature Society 

P.O. Box 99302 

 Troy MI, 48099 

 Phone:  (248) 688-9703 

Fax:  (248) 879-9241 

www.stagenaturecenter.org 

8 

All photos contained in this report were taken at the  Stage Nature Center. 

http://www.troynaturesociety.org/
































 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
Date:  November 14, 2016 
 
 
To:   Brian Kischnick, City Manager 
  
From:  Eleanor Yoon, Management Assistant 
    
 
Subject: 2016 Frightful 5K Move Across Troy Summary Report 
 
 
Race Day Overview 
 

On October 23, 2016, the City of Troy kicked off the first ever Frightful 5K! Runners and 
walkers of all ages were invited to experience what it feels like to travel freely on foot through the 
heart of Troy down Big Beaver Road and through Civic Center Campus. This inaugural event drew 
much attention and excitement across the community! The early Sunday morning was filled with an 
ample amount of sun and fresh, crisp air. Race-day registration began at 7:00am, the Frightful 5K 
started at 8:30am, and the 1K Pumpkin Fun Run followed at 9:30am. Hours before registration, City 
of Troy staff gathered and worked diligently to set up for the event. As early as 6:45am, ardent 
runners were spotted stretching and jogging around the Civic Center campus. With volunteers, 
sponsors, and vendors arriving shortly after, the Troy Community Center South Parking Lot was soon 
ready! 
 

Around 8:30am, the 5K participants gathered at the starting line, which was decorated with 
bright orange and green balloons and Halloween-themed inflatables. Dressed in costumes, the lime-
green Frightful 5K shirt, or their best running gear, participants eagerly awaited for the race to start. 
The top male finisher completed the race in 18 minutes and the top female finisher in 21 minutes. 
After the runners and walkers crossed the finish line, each received a medal, enjoyed snacks, a warm 
cup of coffee, and explored vendor tables. The 1K Pumpkin Family Fun Run followed soon after. 
Many families ran along the path located west of the Community Center. After finishing the course, 
participants picked their favorite pumpkin and sat at the arts and crafts tables to decorate.  
 

Around 10:00am, staff began wrapping up and cleaning the site. The barricades on Big Beaver 
and Livernois Road were swiftly removed and the roads were back open. 382 participants registered 
for the 5K and 113 for the 1K, making the total number of registrants 495. Including family members 
and friends, more than 500 people attended the first Frightful 5K.  
 
 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-02c



 

 

2 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

Financials 
 

Revenue  
Paper Registration $1,028 
Online Registration $5,435 

Sponsorship $6,500 
Vendor Fee $525 

Total Revenue $13,488 
  
Expenses  

Total Expenses $9,656.72 
  
Net Profit $3,831.28 

 
The 2016 Frightful 5K was funded by FY 2016/17 City Manager’s Office Marketing Budget. 

The actual total revenue was $13,488 and the total expenses $9,656.72.The estimated total revenue 
and expenses presented at the August 8th City Council meeting were $7,750 and $7,150, 
respectively. The actual expenses increased due to costs incurred from hosting the event for the first 
time. The actual total revenue nearly doubled, as explained below. Surpassing the initial goal of 
breaking even, the Frightful 5K made a net profit of $3,831.28.  
 
Registration 
 

The Frightful 5K is not a fundraiser but a family-friendly community event. The administration 
sought to maximize the number of participants by offering affordable and competitive registration fees 
for both the 5K and 1K races. For the 5K race, the registration fee was $15 until October 5th. 
Registration between October 6th and October 22nd raised to $20. The race-day registration fee was 
$25. Registration included a high-quality long-sleeved shirt, finisher medal, professional chip timing 
service, and a USA Track and Field certified 5K course time. The 1K registration fee was kept at $10 
before and on race day. The 1K registration included a short-sleeve t-shirt, pumpkin necklace and 
pumpkin to decorate after the event. 382 people signed up for the 5K and 113 for the 1K, making the 
total number of registrants 495. Participants could register in two ways: online or by paper. The 
registration fee collected from paper registration was $1,028 and online registration $5,435. In total, 
$6,463 was collected from registration fees. 
 
Sponsorship and Donations 
 

Administration actively sought sponsorship and donations from business partners and 
community members to offset the registration fee. Thanks to the support of generous sponsors and 



 

 

3 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

donors, the city was able to raise a total of $6,500. Platinum sponsors included DiLisio Construction, 
Kelly Services, Hubbell Roth & Clark Inc, Hilton Garden Inn, and Hampton Inn and Suites. Gold 
Sponsors were Carlisle/Wortman Associates and Columbia Center. The Silver/Water Station Sponsor 
was Orangetheory Fitness, and Bronze Sponsors were Budget Blinds of Troy and Bright Side Dental. 
In addition, Kroger donated reusable grocery bags for the race packets, and refreshments and water 
for after the race were provided by Tim Hortons, Granite City, Costco and Fresh Thyme. 
 
Vendor 
 

The city invited vendors to participate at the Frightful 5K and promote their businesses and/or 
products for a fee of $75. A total of seven businesses participated and the fees collected amounted to 
$525.  
 
Summary 
 

The Frightful 5K demonstrated exemplary inter-department collaboration and partnership. 
Each playing an integral role, the City Manager’s Office, Department of Public Works, Police 

Department, Engineering Department, and Recreation Department all put great effort and resources 
into the event. In addition, the partnership with the Eastside Racing Company guided staff through the 
unfamiliar process of hosting a race for the first time. Moreover, the Frightful 5K could not have run as 
smoothly as it had without volunteers. From high school students to members of service-oriented 
organizations, about 80 volunteers joined the city staff on race day. Lastly, the outpouring of support 
from the community was incredibly helpful. Whether it was participating as a sponsor or vendor or 
simply running in the race, people loved the Frightful 5K and expressed their desire to see more 
community events like it from the city.  
 

After the race, through social media and e-mail, the City Manager’s Office received an 
overwhelming number of positive comments and encouraging feedback from participants. Many 
praised the hard work of the city staff noting how well-organized the event was and expressed their 
excitement for next year. Reflecting on the success of this memorable inaugural event, staff will strive 
to make the Frightful 5K better each year and is hopeful that the Frightful 5K will become an annual 
tradition! 
 



Interim Financial Report 

First Quarter 

For The Three Months Ended 

September 30, 2016 

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-02d



City of Troy 
Interim Financial Report 

Three Months Ended September 30, 2016 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
            Page 
 
 
Snapshot                1 
 
Report Highlights                4 
 
Fund Reports: 
       Tax Supported 

General Fund               8 
Capital Projects Fund              9 
Refuse Fund              10 
Library Fund              11 
General Debt Service Fund             12 

 
      State/Fed Supported 

Major Street Fund              13 
Local Street Fund              14 
Drug Forfeiture Fund             15 

 
     Enterprise Supported 

Aquatic Center Fund             16 
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course            17 
Sylvan Glen Golf Course             18 
Sanitary Sewer Fund             19 
Water Fund              20 



CITY OF TROY

THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

SNAP SHOT

Expended, 
$13.43 

Under 
Budget to 
Date,  $2.17 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$48.96 

General Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$2.69 

Under 
Budget
$3.09 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$20.44 

Capital Projects
(millions)

Expended, 
$0.82 

Under 
Budget to 
Date, 
$0.42 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$4.16 

Refuse Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$0.82 

Under 
Budget to 
Date, 
$0.11 

Remaining 
Budget,  $2.90 

Library Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$2.77 

Remaining 
Budget,  $0.27 

Debt Service Fund
(millions)

 $‐

 $5.00

 $10.00

 $15.00

 $20.00

Projected Amended
Budget

30% Range 20% Range

Unassigned Ending General Fund 
Balance (millions)

1



CITY OF TROY

THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

SNAP SHOT

Expended, 
$1.01 

Under 
Budget 
$0.33 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$4.35 

Major Streets Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$0.57 

Under 
Budget to 
Date, 
$0.13 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$2.21 

Local Streets Fund
(millions)

Expended, 
$0.01 

Under 
Budget to 
Date, 
$0.07 

Remaining 
Budget, 
$0.30 

Drug Forfeiture Fund
(millions)

$0.32  $0.32 

 $‐

 $0.05

 $0.10

 $0.15

 $0.20

 $0.25

 $0.30

 $0.35

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Aquatic Center
(millions)

$0.80 

$0.52 

 $0.10

 $0.30

 $0.50

 $0.70

 $0.90

 $1.10

 $1.30

 $1.50

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Sanctuary Lake G.C
(millions)

$0.61 

$0.35 

 $0.10

 $0.30

 $0.50

 $0.70

 $0.90

 $1.10

 $1.30

 $1.50

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Sylvan Glen G.C
(millions)

2



CITY OF TROY

THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016

SNAP SHOT

$3.93 
$3.25 

 $‐

 $1.00

 $2.00

 $3.00

 $4.00

 $5.00

 $6.00

 $7.00

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Sewer Fund
(millions)

$5.98  $5.89 

 $‐

 $1.00

 $2.00

 $3.00

 $4.00

 $5.00

 $6.00

 $7.00

Operating Revenues Operating Expenses

Water Fund
(millions)

3



 
CITY OF TROY 

QUARTERLY REPORT 
THREE MONTHS ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2016 

HIGHLIGHTS 

 
General Fund 

 
Revenues 
Total revenues are $35.6 million to date and represents 62.55% of total budgeted 

revenues and other sources. This is a decrease of $171 thousand or 0.5% compared to the 

same time period in the prior year and includes recognition of total annual tax revenues 

of $30.4 million. The decrease in revenues is due to a decrease in Other Financing 

Sources which primarily represent reimbursements from Major and Local Street funds for 

street costs incurred by the General Fund. 

 
Expenditures  

Total General Fund expenditures to date are $13.4 million or 21.52% of the annual budget. 

All departments appear to be within expected budgetary parameters to date. The Fire 

Department may appear higher than expected due to the $1.2 million contribution to the 

VFIP Plan & Trust made at the beginning of the year. In addition, the Historic Village and 

Nature Center may appear slightly high at first glance but should be noted that they 

receive 100% of the City subsidy at the beginning of the fiscal year. 

  

Capital Fund 

 
Revenues 
Total revenues are $9.2 million to date and represent 48.99% of total budgeted revenues 

and other sources. This is a decrease of $1.0 million is due primarily to the decrease in 

Other Financing Sources which represents the decrease in one-time General Fund 

appropriations. 

Expenditures 
Expenditures for capital projects of $2.7 million represent 11.63% of budgeted projects. 

This is down approximately $5.1 million from the prior year. The decrease is primarily 

related to the prior year purchase of Transit Center property and the current year 

decrease in budgeted street renovations. 

4



 

Debt Service Fund 

 
Revenues 
Total revenues of $2.7 million are down $433 thousand compared to the prior year. The 

decrease is due to a reduction in tax revenues generated from a reduction in the millage 

rate from 0.7 to 0.6 mills. 

 

Aquatic Center 

 
Revenues 
Revenues of $324 thousand represent 46.1% of the fund’s annual budgeted financial 

resources. This is down $103 thousand compared to the prior year during the same time 

period. Aquatic programs were down $38 thousand due in part to shortages in lifeguard 

instructors. Daily passes were down $52 thousand due to lower turnout in late August, 

Labor Day and the cancellation of Glow Night due to inclement weather. Although 

revenues are down compared to the prior year, they do fall in line with 2012 through 2014 

averages of $162 thousand for the same time period. It should be noted that the majority 

of the revenue for membership passes comes in the months of May and June and is 

expected to generate an additional $426 thousand depending on weather. 

 

Sanctuary Lake Golf Course 

 
Revenues 
Revenues of $802 thousand are down $32 thousand or 3.9% compared to the prior year 

for the same time period. Total year to date rounds are 18,701 representing a decrease of 

approximately 138 rounds from prior year. In addition, clinic/school revenues are down 

$22 thousand compared to the prior year. Weather conditions can have a significant 

impact on financial results.  

 

Expenses 
Total expenditures of $562 thousand are up $46 thousand or 8.8% compared to prior 

year to date amounts due to capital expenditures for equipment of $44 thousand. 

Expenditures for operations (“Billy Casper”) of $540 thousand are comparable to prior 

year. 

 

5



As in prior years, it is not anticipated that income from operations will cover the entire 

debt service amount budgeted at $855 thousand. 

 

Sylvan Glen Golf Course 

 
Revenues 
Revenues of $614 thousand are down $24 thousand or 3.8% compared to the prior year 

to date amounts. Total year to date rounds are 21,361 representing a decrease of 

approximately 1,060 rounds. Weather conditions can have a significant impact on 

financial results. 

 

Expenses 
Total expenditures of $389 thousand are up $38 thousand or 11% compared 

to prior year to date amounts due to capital expenditures for equipment of 

$37 thousand. Expenditures for operations (“Billy Casper”) of $375 thousand 

are up less than 1%.  

 

Sewer Fund 

 
Revenues 
Sewer fund revenues of $3.9 million are up $681 thousand or 21.0% from the prior year to 

date due primarily from consumption (up 33,399 mcf or 29.7%). Sewer rates remained 

unchanged from the prior year at $25.30 per mcf. 

  
Expenses 
Sewer fund expenses of $3.3 million remained relatively unchanged from the prior year. 

Beginning with the 2015 fiscal year, the Oakland County Water Resource Commission 

(OCWRC) began charging a fixed rate for sewer services. Accordingly, increased and/or 

decreases in consumption will not have a direct effect on sewer costs. However, 

consumption does have a direct effect on the rates charged to consumers to meet these 

fixed cost obligations. 

 

 

 

 

 

6



Water Fund 

 
Revenues 
Water fund revenues of $6.0 million are up $1.8 million or 44.3% primarily due to increased 

consumption (up 33,399 mcf or 29.7%) and from rate increases from $34.40 to $38.50 per 

mcf required to offset escalating costs due to the fixed fee component of charges from 

the Great Lakes Water Authority (GLWA). Weather patterns can have a significant impact 

on consumption over the summer months. 

  

Expenses 
Water fund total expenses of $5.9 million is down $106 thousand or 1.8% due primarily to 

capital purchases in the prior year of $1.2 million during the reporting period. Current year 

operating costs of $5.9 million are up $1.1 or 22.0% compared to the prior year. The water 

cost amount does have a significant fixed cost aspect and accordingly, does not decrease 

(or increase) proportionately with sale volumes. However, consumption does have a 

direct effect on the rates charged to consumers to meet these fixed cost obligations. 

 

7



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
General Fund Revenues
TAXES 30,486,065 30,835,600 30,297,309 98.25 30,913,240 30,404,196 98.35
LICENSES AND PERMITS 2,519,343 2,587,150 656,173 25.36 2,613,750 698,619 26.73
GRANTS 6,680,161 6,916,300 1,279,582 18.50 7,141,580 1,200,509 16.81
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 94,378 30,500 51,265 168.08 72,500 37,533 51.77
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 9,313,680 8,511,100 1,608,671 18.90 8,150,000 1,794,717 22.02
FINES AND FORFEITURES 983,677 844,000 307,763 36.46 992,250 190,778 19.23
INTEREST & RENT 1,336,920 1,162,600 296,970 25.54 1,188,100 302,079 25.43
OTHER REVENUE 829,938 1,063,400 266,526 25.06 1,069,500 269,622 25.21
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 2,681,270 4,732,260 1,044,039 22.06 4,830,240 739,211 15.30

54,925,431 56,682,910 35,808,297 63.17 56,971,160 35,637,264 62.55
General Fund Expenditures
General government 7,247,951 7,769,950 1,529,359 19.68 8,553,360 1,754,168 20.51
    Council and Executive Administration 3,784,272 4,029,320 823,122 20.43 4,677,040 998,047 21.34
    Finance 2,446,970 2,596,230 536,629 20.67 2,706,310 566,418 20.93
    Other General Government 1,016,708 1,144,400 169,609 14.82 1,170,010 189,703 16.21
Public Safety 28,562,706 31,781,830 6,410,317 20.17 31,928,860 7,137,202 22.35
    Police 21,853,972 24,237,560 4,628,905 19.10 24,715,740 5,151,417 20.84
    Fire 4,688,527 5,030,550 1,756,864 34.92 4,977,230 1,800,375 36.17
    Building Inspection 2,020,207 2,513,720 24,548 0.98 2,235,890 185,410 8.29
Public Works 5,372,206 6,544,050 918,622 14.04 6,774,810 965,697 14.25
    Streets 5,372,206 6,544,050 918,622 14.04 6,774,810 965,697 14.25
Community Development 3,073,451 3,223,050 643,363 19.96 3,308,820 737,161 22.28
    Engineering 2,269,740 2,341,890 464,560 19.84 2,418,530 549,054 22.70
    Planning 803,711 881,160 178,803 20.29 890,290 188,106 21.13
Recreation and Culture 6,712,162 7,138,550 1,623,417 22.74 7,437,580 1,666,417 22.41
    Parks 2,416,999 2,756,310 535,973 19.45 2,894,340 504,753 17.44
    Recreation 4,026,144 4,082,990 909,667 22.28 4,199,110 963,751 22.95
    Nature Center 118,395 119,540 82,892 69.34 120,430 82,675 68.65
    Historic Village 150,624 179,710 94,884 52.80 223,700 115,238 51.51
Transfers Out & Other Uses 5,223,125 10,360,000 1,965,000 18.97 4,388,860 1,167,215 26.59

56,191,601 66,817,430 13,090,079 19.59 62,392,290 13,427,860 21.52

Quarterly Financial Report
General Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

8



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
Capital Fund Revenues
TAXES 6,771,668 6,782,100 6,794,144 100.18 6,831,080 6,827,614 99.95
GRANTS 1,260,398 1,333,000 336,615 25.25 1,717,250 0 0.00
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 899,355 200,000 0 0.00 944,510 150,000 15.88
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 198,682 342,000 178,984 52.33 345,000 188,511 54.64
INTEREST & RENT 176,417 105,000 16,290 15.51 105,000 11,164 10.63
OTHER REVENUE 550,071 315,000 130,960 41.57 200,000 0 0.00
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 7,851,588 14,293,900 2,816,413 19.70 8,720,020 2,063,031 23.66

17,708,180 23,371,000 10,273,407 43.96 18,862,860 9,240,321 48.99
Capital Fund Expenditures
Capital Outlay 25,279,531 26,770,600 7,826,286 29.23 23,127,820 2,689,283 11.63
    Council/Executive Administration 82,607 80,000 5,694 7.12 174,000 0 0.00
    Finance 30,925 17,000 7,559 44.47 17,000 1,436 8.45
    City Buildings 3,217,720 30,000 2,941,943 9806.48 830,000 0 0.00
    Police 222,890 406,000 3,330 0.82 597,500 21,878 3.66
    Fire 787,350 4,305,000 572,849 13.31 3,974,730 366,581 9.22
    Streets 19,360,049 17,462,200 4,069,465 23.30 14,017,990 2,149,890 15.34
    Public Works 59,226 567,640 243 0.04 394,000 0 0.00
    Parks 273,204 1,667,000 15,380 0.92 2,040,000 28,457 1.39
    Recreation 460,751 711,000 0 0.00 0 1,000 0.00
    Nature Center 32,888 50,000 0 0.00 0 0 0.00
    Library 748,970 1,162,760 186,413 16.03 950,600 120,042 12.63
    Historic Village 2,950 147,000 23,412 15.93 132,000 0 0.00
    Other 0 165,000 0 0.00 0 0 0.00

25,279,531 26,770,600 7,826,286 29.23 23,127,820 2,689,283 11.63

Quarterly Financial Report
Capital Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

9



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
Refuse Fund Revenues
TAXES 4,733,992 4,741,500 4,749,711 100.17 4,775,540 4,773,118 99.95
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 8,630 6,500 1,770 27.23 8,000 3,672 45.90
INTEREST & RENT 30,676 20,000 496 2.48 14,000 916 6.54

4,773,298 4,768,000 4,751,977 99.66 4,797,540 4,777,705 99.59
Refuse Fund Expenditures
Sanitation 4,494,409 4,573,000 937,246 20.50 4,979,650 822,783 16.52

4,494,409 4,573,000 937,246 20.50 4,979,650 822,783 16.52

Quarterly Financial Report
Refuse Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

10



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Library Fund Revenues
TAXES 3,083,735 3,088,500 3,093,979 100.18 3,122,410 3,115,922 99.79
GRANTS 52,954 24,000 24,070 100.29 25,000 26,653 106.61
CONTRIBUTIONS FROM LOCAL UNITS 171,283 109,000 163,629 150.12 172,000 171,283 99.58
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 23,944 22,110 5,558 25.14 30,000 6,691 22.30
FINES AND FORFEITURES 107,710 115,000 26,481 23.03 120,000 25,845 21.54
INTEREST & RENT 42,941 13,700 2,076 15.15 11,500 2,826 24.57
OTHER REVENUE 4,654 202,000 70 0.03 10,000 8,306 83.06

3,487,221 3,574,310 3,315,863 92.77 3,490,910 3,357,526 96.18
Library Fund Expenditures
Recreation and culture-OLD 3,321,997 3,836,590 800,651 20.87 3,718,910 816,877 21.97

3,321,997 3,836,590 800,651 20.87 3,718,910 816,877 21.97

Quarterly Financial Report
Library Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

11



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
General Debt Service Fund Revenues
TAXES 3,106,251 3,107,500 3,116,779 100.30 2,685,300 2,683,941 99.95
GRANTS 0 0 0 0.00 33,190 0 0.00
INTEREST & RENT 21,542 12,000 1,483 12.36 11,000 1,498 13.62

3,127,793 3,119,500 3,118,262 99.96 2,729,490 2,685,439 98.39
General Debt Service Fund Expenditures
Debt Service 3,088,936 3,097,000 2,779,071 89.73 3,044,350 2,772,957 91.09

3,088,936 3,097,000 2,779,071 89.73 3,044,350 2,772,957 91.09

Quarterly Financial Report
General Debt Service Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

12



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
Major Street Fund Revenues
GRANTS 4,855,713 3,798,400 1,119,383 29.47 4,872,980 1,233,509 25.31
INTEREST & RENT 58,410 18,000 5,492 30.51 25,000 9,669 38.68

4,914,123 3,816,400 1,124,875 29.47 4,897,980 1,243,179 25.38
Major Street Fund Expenditures
Transfers Out & Other Uses 3,157,550 4,514,670 1,240,028 27.47 5,357,240 1,006,520 18.79

3,157,550 4,514,670 1,240,028 27.47 5,357,240 1,006,520 18.79

Quarterly Financial Report
Major Street Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

13



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Local Street Fund Revenues
GRANTS 1,581,594 1,495,220 394,667 26.40 1,918,900 403,384 21.02
INTEREST & RENT 48,398 16,000 5,243 32.77 24,700 6,371 25.79
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 375,000 500,000 125,000 25.00 500,000 125,000 25.00

2,004,992 2,011,220 524,910 26.10 2,443,600 534,755 21.88
Local Street Fund Expenditures
Transfers Out & Other Uses 1,813,660 3,228,210 588,997 18.25 2,781,840 567,476 20.40

1,813,660 3,228,210 588,997 18.25 2,781,840 567,476 20.40

Quarterly Financial Report
Local Street Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

14



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Forfeiture Fund Revenues
FINES AND FORFEITURES 92,185 130,000 17,688 13.61 101,000 59,839 59.25
INTEREST & RENT 11,230 0 863 0.00 0 1,459 0.00

103,415 130,000 18,551 14.27 101,000 61,298 60.69
Forfeiture Fund Expenditures
Public Safety 48,311 152,000 7,854 5.17 304,500 7,175 2.36
    Police 48,311 152,000 7,854 5.17 304,500 7,175 2.36

48,311 152,000 7,854 5.17 304,500 7,175 2.36

Quarterly Financial Report
Forfeiture Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

15



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
Aquatic Center Fund Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 710,410 555,000 323,433 58.28 662,000 235,767 35.61
INTEREST & RENT 18,087 113,700 103,752 91.25 40,700 90,298 221.86
OTHER REVENUE -4,044 100 87 86.59 100 -2,095 (2094.92)

724,453 668,800 427,272 63.89 702,800 323,970 46.10
Aquatic Center Fund Expenditures
Aquatic Center 698,865 530,830 323,953 61.03 700,590 323,731 46.21
    Operations 698,865 440,730 323,953 73.50 531,590 315,711 59.39
    Capital 0 90,100 0 0.00 169,000 8,020 4.75

698,865 530,830 323,953 61.03 700,590 323,731 46.21

Quarterly Financial Report
Aquatic Center Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

16



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,803,385 1,399,810 833,961 59.58 1,528,120 801,719 52.46
INTEREST & RENT 403 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00
OTHER REVENUE 10,000 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00

1,813,788 1,399,810 833,961 59.58 1,528,120 801,719 52.46
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course Expenditures
Sanctuary Lake 1,900,989 2,160,570 516,405 23.90 2,235,210 562,264 25.15
    Billy Casper 1,598,749 1,109,680 539,889 48.65 1,311,720 539,995 41.17
    City Expenses 302,240 900,890 -23,484 -2.61 873,490 -21,715 -2.49
    Capital 0 150,000 0 0.00 50,000 43,984 87.97

1,900,989 2,160,570 516,405 23.90 2,235,210 562,264 25.15

Quarterly Financial Report
Sanctuary Lake Golf Course

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

17



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 1,141,317 1,060,300 540,038 50.93 1,012,920 515,764 50.92
INTEREST & RENT 149,895 163,400 98,765 60.44 159,400 98,614 61.87
OTHER REVENUE 11,801 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00

1,303,013 1,223,700 638,802 52.20 1,172,320 614,378 52.41
Sylvan Glen Golf Course Expenditures
Sylvan Glen 1,140,839 1,117,950 350,802 31.38 1,134,780 389,281 34.30
    Billy Casper 1,133,159 1,005,850 371,870 36.97 947,870 375,277 39.59
    City Expenses 7,680 44,100 -21,068 -47.77 47,910 -22,606 -47.18
    Capital 0 68,000 0 0.00 139,000 36,610 26.34

1,140,839 1,117,950 350,802 31.38 1,134,780 389,281 34.30

Quarterly Financial Report
Sylvan Glen Golf Course

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

18



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current 
Year
% to 

Budget
Sewer Fund Revenues
GRANTS 232,587 333,000 172,718 51.87 334,000 0 0.00
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 12,090,233 12,627,000 3,015,738 23.88 12,623,000 3,871,095 30.67
INTEREST & RENT 445,700 186,300 57,059 30.63 186,300 55,593 29.84
OTHER REVENUE 235,403 0 0 0.00 0 0 0.00

13,003,923 13,146,300 3,245,516 24.69 13,143,300 3,926,689 29.88
Sewer Fund Expenditures
Sewer 12,522,486 21,148,460 3,241,263 15.33 14,538,350 3,253,783 22.38
    Administration & Cost of Sales 11,745,425 11,493,580 2,935,694 25.54 11,253,090 3,042,543 27.04
    Maintenance 777,061 1,177,380 210,564 17.88 1,227,260 186,833 15.22
    Capital 0 8,477,500 95,005 1.12 2,058,000 24,407 1.19

12,522,486 21,148,460 3,241,263 15.33 14,538,350 3,253,783 22.38

Quarterly Financial Report
Sewer Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

19



Description
Last Year

Total Actual
Last Year
Budget

Last Year
Year To Date

Last Year
Percent to 

Budget
Current Year 

Budget
Current Year
Year To Date

Current
Year
% to 

Budget
Water Fund Revenues
CHARGES FOR SERVICES 16,581,967 16,744,200 4,117,281 24.59 18,772,000 5,960,773 31.75
INTEREST & RENT 239,395 108,000 29,399 27.22 108,000 23,793 22.03
OTHER REVENUE 634,492 0 0 0.00 97,170 0 0.00

17,455,854 16,852,200 4,146,680 24.61 18,977,170 5,984,567 31.54
Water Fund Expenditures
Water 18,442,832 19,478,730 6,004,969 30.83 19,138,660 5,898,886 30.82
    Administration & Cost of Sales 15,760,704 12,908,280 4,267,500 33.06 14,218,140 5,244,395 36.89
    Transmission & Distribution 515,356 637,880 143,623 22.52 600,700 127,185 21.17
    Maintenance 1,937,381 2,278,820 370,778 16.27 2,388,520 478,597 20.04
    Reading & Accounting 229,392 253,750 49,078 19.34 268,060 44,751 16.69
    Capital 0 3,400,000 1,173,989 34.53 1,663,240 3,958 0.24

18,442,832 19,478,730 6,004,969 30.83 19,138,660 5,898,886 30.82

Quarterly Financial Report
Water Fund

For the Period Ending September 30, 2016

20



1

Beth L Tashnick

Subject: FW: Wanted to let you know

 
---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: "DARRIN MILLAR" <  
Date: Mon, Oct 24, 2016 at 8:09 PM -0400 
Subject: Wanted to let you know 
To: "Dane Slater" <MayorSlater@troymi.gov>, "Ed Pennington" <Ed.Pennington@troymi.gov>, "Edna Abrahim" 
<Edna.Abrahim@troymi.gov>, "Ethan Baker" <Ethan.Baker@troymi.gov>, "Dave Henderson" 
<davehenderson@wideopenwest.com>, "Ellen C Hodorek" <Ellen.Hodorek@troymi.gov>, "Paul McCown" 
<Paul.McCown@troymi.gov> 
Cc: "William J Huotari" <HuotariWJ@troymi.gov> 
 

Dear City Council, 
 

    I wanted to take a minute to share a compliment about Bill Huotari.  During the month of August, I was 
trying to get a stop sign at a dangerous intersection in my subdivision.  I called City Hall and talked to 
Bill.  Bill started the process by ordering a study of the area.  He was so professional, and explained the 
process to me step by step.  From going to the Traffic Committee meeting and the City Council meeting, 
everything went exactly as Bill said it would. 
 

    Thanks to Bill, I was able to work with 'City Hall' to make my neighborhood safer.  I have told all my 
neighbors and friends about Bill and how he made this process so 'resident friendly'. 
 

    I just wanted to let you know that Bill Huotari is an asset to the city and residents of Troy. 
 

Thank You, 
 

Darrin Millar 
 

   

stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03a



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03b



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03c



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-03d



stewartc
Typewritten Text
P-05








	November 14, 2016 Agenda
	Cover Memo
	Top 10 Strategies
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET: Return to 1st Page
	INVOCATION:
	PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. 1. ROLL CALL:
	B. 2. 2016-2017 CITY COUNCIL INSTALLATION:
	a) Appointment of Mayor Pro Tem
	b) Swearing-In of Mayor Pro Tem
	c) Adoption of 2016-2017 City Council Rules of Procedure
	d) Adoption of Code of Ethics for City Council
	e) Adoption of Code of Ethics for Boards and Committees
	f) Proposed Resolution to Allow Pennington Collision to Remain on the List of Eligible Vendors

	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Presentation to the Mayor and City Council on the 2017 Shen Yun Performances at the Detroit Opera House by Julia Song and Valorie Avore (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director)
	C-2 Service Commendation for Ted Halsey (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Parks and Recreation Board
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – Global Troy Advisory Committee, Local Development Finance Authority, Volunteer Firefighter Incentive Plan Board; b) City Council Nominations – Charter Revision Committee, Historic District ...
	I-3 Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency” (Introduced by:  Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney)

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Special Joint City Council and Planning Commission-Draft – October 24, 2016
	b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 24, 2016
	c) Special Joint City Council and Downtown Development Authority-Draft – October 25, 2016

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  None Submitted
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fitness Equipment
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4:  Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Police Officer Ballistic Vests

	J-5 Traffic Committee Recommendation and Minutes – October 2016
	J-6 2017 City Council Meeting Schedule
	J-7 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Six Permanent Easements from Forest Run, LLC – Forest Run Site Condominium, Sidwell #88-20-12-351-014
	J-8 Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Permanent Easement from GFA Harmony Developers, LLC, and to Vacate a Permanent Easement and Granted Right-of-Way, West Oak III Site Condominium – Sidwell #88-20-23-401-018 and 019

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):  None Submitted

	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  No Council Comments Advanced

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final – September 14, 2016
	b) Zoning Board of Appeals-Final – September 20, 2016
	c) Traffic Committee-Final – September 21, 2016
	d) Building Code Board of Appeals-Final – October 5, 2016
	e) Planning Commission-Final – October 11, 2016
	f) Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft – October 18, 2016
	g) Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft – October 18, 2016
	h) Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft – October 24, 2016
	i) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – November 2, 2016

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Building Department Activity Report – October, 2016
	b) Troy Nature Society Financial Statements for the Year Ended June 30, 2016
	c) Financial Report for the Frightful 5K
	d) First Quarter Financial Report for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2016

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To City Council from Darrin Millar Regarding Excellent Service Provided by Bill Huotari
	b) To Chief Mayer from Larry Casey Regarding Citizens Police Academy
	c) To Chief Mayer from Daniel Perry Regarding Officer Russ Barrows for Participation in “Active Threat” Training
	d) To Officer John Julian from Morse Preschool for Being the School Resource Officer

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of DTE Electric Company Case No. U-18143

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:
	November 21, 2016 Regular Meeting
	December 5, 2016 Regular Meeting
	December 19, 2016 Regular Meeting
	Attachments.pdf
	20161114 Agenda - B-02  2016-2017 City Council Installation
	a) Proposed Resolution to Allow Pennington Collision to Remain on the List of Eligible Vendors

	20161114 Agenda - B-02c  Adoption of 2016-2017 City Council Rules of Procedure
	CITY COUNCIL
	Adopted: November 9 14, 20165
	1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM
	2. CODE OF ETHICS
	3. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR
	4. SPECIAL MEETINGS
	5. REGULAR MEETINGS
	6. AGENDA
	7. ORDER OF BUSINESS
	8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS
	9. MINUTES
	10. PROCLAMATIONS
	11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS
	12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS
	13. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING
	14. PUBLIC HEARING
	15. CONSENT AGENDA
	16. APPOINTMENTS
	17. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS
	18. POSTPONE
	19. RULES OF ORDER
	20. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES
	21. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS
	22. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS
	23. SUSPEND RULES
	24. COUNCIL DISCUSSION
	25. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS
	26. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS
	27. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM
	28. VIOLATIONS
	29. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY MEETING OF COUNCIL

	20161114 Agenda - B-02d  Code of Ethics for City Council
	20161114 Agenda - B-02e  Code of Ethics for Board and Committee Appointee
	20161114 Agenda - C-02  Service Commendation for Ted Halsey, Traffic Committee Member
	20161114 Agenda - I-04  Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 Declared Emergency
	AGENDA ITEM 1 - Council Agenda- Ordinance Change - Emergency Purchases-Revised
	AGENDA ITEM 2 - CHAPTER 7 ORDINANCE AMENDMENT SECTION 9

	20161114 Agenda - J-04a  SPR2 Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Fitness Equipment
	ITB-COT 16-35 Fitness Equipment Bid Tab.pdf
	CompleteBidTab


	20161114 Agenda - J-04b  SPR4  Award – Oakland County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement – Fleet Vehicles
	Todd Wenzel Buick GMC              Budget    Unit Cost        Estimated Total       Project#
	(1) GMC Pickup Truck 4WD                          $30,000.00     $27,421.00          $27,421.00              2017C0066

	20161114 Agenda - J-04c  SPR2  Low Bidder Meeting Specifications – Police Officer Ballistic Vests
	ITB-COT 16-36 Ballistic Vests_BidTab.pdf
	ITB-COT 14-01


	20161114 Agenda - J-05  Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes - October 19, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - J-07  Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Six Permanent Easements - Forest Run Site Condominium - Sidwell 88-20-12-351-014
	20161114 Agenda - J-08  Request for Acceptance of a Warranty Deed and Permanent Easement from GFA Harmony Developers LLC  - West Oak III Site Condominium - Sidwell 88-20-23-401-018 and 019
	20161114 Agenda - P-01a  Employees Retirement System Board of Trustees-Final - September 14, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01b  Zoning Board of Appeals-Final - September 20, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01c  Traffic Committee-Final - September 21, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01d  Building Code Board of Appeals-Final - October 5, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01e  Planning Commission-Final - October 11, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01f  Troy Brownfield Redevelopment Authority-Draft - October 18, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01g  Zoning Board of Appeals-Draft - October 18, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01h  Joint Local Development Finance Authority-Draft - October 24, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-01i  Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft - November 2, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-02a  Building Department Activity Report - October, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-02b  Troy Nature Society Financial Statements for the Year Ended- June 30, 2016
	20161114 Agenda - P-02c  2016 Frightful 5K Move Across Troy Summary Report
	20161114 Agenda - P-02d  First Quarter Financial Report for the Three Months Ended September 30, 2016
	2016-09-30 Preliminary Quarterly Financial Report - Class-Func.pdf
	WAT
	GF
	CAP
	REF
	LIB
	DS
	MS
	LS
	DF
	TFAC
	SLGC
	SGGC
	SEW


	20161114 Agenda - P-03a  LoA to City Council Regarding Excellent Service Provided by Bill Huotari
	20161114 Agenda - P-03b  LoA to Chief Mayer from Larry Case RE Citizens Police Academy
	20161114 Agenda - P-03c  LoA to Chief Mayer from Daniel Perry RE Officer Russ Barrows for Participation in Active Threat Training
	20161114 Agenda - P-03d  LoA to Officer Julian from Morse Preschool for Being the School Resource Officer
	20161114 Agenda - P-05 Notice of Hearing for the Electric Customers of DTE Electric Company Case No. U-18143

	20161114 Agenda - J-02a  Joint Special City Council and Planning Commission Minutes-Draft - October 24 2016.pdf
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	C-1 Presentation by Bob Gibbs, Gibbs Planning Group, and Matt Farrell, Core Partners, on the Current Draft of the Development of the Troy Town Center Site

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	E. ADJOURNMENT:

	20161114 Agenda - J-02b  City Council Minutes-Draft - October 24 2016.pdf
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Proclamation for America Recycles Day Presented to Pam Brady, South Oakland County Resource Recovery (Introduced by: Cindy Stewart, Community Affairs Director) (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-2 Diwali Celebration Proclamation Presented to Padma Kuppa, Board Member of Michigan Chapter of the Hindu American Foundation and Members of the Bharatiya Temple (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)
	C-3 Proclamation Honoring Cindy Stewart for Being Named One of the 2016 Esteemed Women of Michigan (Presented by:  Mayor Dane Slater)

	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment File No. ZOTA 249 – Enhanced Cluster Option

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	G. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1 No Postponed Items

	I. REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: a) Mayoral Appointments – None; b) City Council Appointments – Animal Control Appeal Board, Parks and Recreation Board
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: a) Mayoral Nominations – None; b) City Council Nominations –Parks & Recreation Board, Traffic Committee
	I-3 No Closed Session Requested
	I-4 Big Beaver Trolley Proposal (Introduced by: Mayor Dane Slater) (Presented by: Robert Cramer, SMART)
	I-5 Standard Purchasing Resolution 8:  Best Value Award – Emergency Medical and First Responder Services (Introduced by:  Fire Chief Dave Roberts and Purchasing Manager MaryBeth Murz)

	J. CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Special Joint City Council and Troy School Board Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016
	b) City Council Minutes-Draft – October 10, 2016

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	a) America Recycles Day 2016
	b) Celebration of Diwali – The Festival of Lights – October 30, 2016
	c) Cindy Stewart – Esteemed Women of Michigan 2016 Honoree

	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Low Bidders Meeting Specifications – Snow Removal Services

	J-5 Request for Recognition as a Nonprofit Organization from Myasthenia Gravis Association, Inc.
	J-6 Former I-75 – Rochester Mobil Gas Station, 2745 Rochester Road Proposal to Complete Analytical Testing and Final Assessment/Closure Report

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time):
	a) Amendment to City Ordinance Chapter 7 Item 9 “Declared Emergency”


	L. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM TROY RESIDENTS AND BUSINESSES:
	M. CITY COUNCIL/CITY ADMINISTRATION RESPONSE/REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT:
	N. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	N-1  No Council Referrals Submitted

	O. COUNCIL COMMENTS:
	O-1  Council Comments

	P. REPORTS:
	P-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	a) Planning Commission-Draft – September 27, 2016
	b) Planning Commission-Final – September 27, 2016
	c) Building Code Board of Appeals-Draft – October 5, 2016

	P-2 Department Reports:
	a) Staff Response to Safety Concern

	P-3 Letters of Appreciation:
	a) To Chief Mayer from Wendy Dingwall Regarding Troy High Cross Country Team Morning Practice
	b) To Chief Mayer from Unknown Resident Regarding Officer Assistance
	c) To Chief Roberts from Bruce Benson Regarding Eagles vs Troy Fire Department Event
	d) To Brian Kischnick from Mayor Slater Regarding Eleanor Yoon’s Outstanding Work on the Global Troy Advisory Committee
	e) To Chief Roberts from Nancy Butty Regarding Participation in the Apparatus Display for the Fire and Life Safety Program
	f) To Steve Vandette from Mark and Mary MacKinnon Regarding the Excellent Service Received from Guy Kitchen

	P-4 Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  None Submitted
	P-5 Notice of Hearing for the Natural Gas Customers of Consumers Energy Co. Case No. U-18166 – Saginaw Trail Pipeline

	Q. COMMENTS ON ITEMS ON OR NOT ON THE AGENDA FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC OUTSIDE OF TROY (NOT RESIDENTS OF TROY AND NOT FROM TROY BUSINESSES):
	R. CLOSED SESSION:
	R-1 No Closed Session

	S. ADJOURNMENT:

	20161114 Agenda - J-02c  Joint Special City Council and Downtown Development Authority Minutes-Draft - October 25 2016.pdf
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. DISCUSSION ITEMS:
	C-1 Presentation by Unicorp National Developments Inc. Vision for Redevelopment of 888 W. Big Beaver Road  (Presented by:  Chuck Whittall, President)
	C-2 Quality Development Initiative (QDI), a Potential Incentive to Encourage Quality Redevelopment of the DDA District  (Presented by:  Brian Kischnick, City Manager, and Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development)
	C-3 City Council and Downtown Development Authority Discussion of the Proposed QDI and 888 W. Big Beaver Redevelopment

	D. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	E. ADJOURNMENT:




